ABRIDGED MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES)
During the year under review, the world faced several economic
and political challenges ranging from Eurozone debt crisis to
continued turmoil in some of the countries in North African
region. Though, the Indian economy grew strongly for a
few years after the Global Financial crisis in 2007-08, fiscal
2012-13 has not been one of its best years with deceleration in
GDP growth rates, widening fiscal and current account deficits
and currency volatility. The government has taken initiatives
during the last few months to reverse the slowdown and reduce
vulnerabilities. Measures taken include higher diesel prices and
quantity limits on subsidized LPG, two challenging but essential
measures to rein in the fiscal deficit. Further liberalization of FDI
was announced during the year and a Cabinet Committee on
Investment (CCI), enabling single-window approval for large
projects was constituted.
As per the recent review of the Indian economy released by the
Economic Advisory Council, a recovery in growth and economic
activity is expected during the next fiscal and they have forecast
GDP growth of 6.4% for fiscal 2013-14.
While several sectors of the economy were under pressure, the
FMCG industry continued on a steady growth trajectory. Riding
on continued demand for branded food products, personal
care, household care, baby care and OTC products, the Indian
FMCG sector crossed the ` 2 trillion mark in fiscal 2012-13 as
per AC Nielsen.
DABUR PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW
Dabur achieved strong growth in sales and profits during fiscal
2012-13 with its sales crossing the ` 6000 crore mark. Good
growth momentum was witnessed across categories and
geographies and the Domestic FMCG business comprising
Consumer Care and Foods and the organic International
Business reported strong volume driven growth.
STRATEGIC BUSINESS UNITS
Following the reorganization and unification of our various
business verticals in fiscal 2011-12, the entire business structure
today stands as below:
•
Consumer Care Business incorporating the Health Care
and Home & Personal Care verticals. This accounts for
54.5% of the consolidated sales
•
Foods comprising the fruit-based beverages and culinary
pastes business, which contributes 10.8% to consolidated
sales
•
International Business, which includes Dabur’s organic
overseas business as well as the acquired entities, Hobi
Group and Namaste Laboratories LLC. This vertical now
accounts for 30.5% of Dabur’s consolidated sales
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Digestives
The Digestives portfolio which contributes 7.2% to Consumer
Care sales grew by 3.9% in fiscal 2012-13. Following the business
reorganization in 2011-12, the digestive business has now
gained scale with consolidation of all digestive brands under
one category.
OTC Products
The OTC products portfolio, which is 7.6% of Consumer Care,
registered growth of 15.6% in fiscal 2012-13.
Ayurvedic Ethicals
The Ayurvedic Ethicals portfolio, which contributes 4.1% to
Consumer Care, performed well growing by 17.2% during fiscal
2012-13.
Skin & Body Care
The Skin & Body Care portfolio grew by 15.4% in fiscal 2012-13
and comprises 6.4% of Consumer Care Business.
Oral Care
Dabur’s Oral Care portfolio grew by 10.3% during fiscal
2012-13 and comprises 16.9% of Consumer Care Business. The
portfolio comprises two key product categories - toothpaste
and toothpowder.
Home Care
Dabur’s Home Care portfolio continued on a strong growth
trajectory and grew by 25.3%. The portfolio comprises 6.9% of
Consumer Care Business.
FOODS
Dabur’s Foods segment was the star performer growing by
24.5% during fiscal 2012-13 driven by continuous innovation
and sustained demand for our packaged fruit juices & nectars
under the brands Réal and Réal Activ.
INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS
Dabur’s International Business continued on the strong
growth trajectory growing by 17.1% to ` 1,892 crores in fiscal
2012-13. The international business now contributes 30.5% to
consolidated sales. Our major international markets are Middle
East, Africa, Asia (ex-India) and the U.S.
SALES & DISTRIBUTION
Dabur’s Project Double, which was aimed at enhancing direct
coverage in rural India, has been successfully implemented
across 10 key states. Post this project we have witnessed increase
in our product width in rural markets which has translated into
higher and more profitable sales.

CONSUMER CARE BUSINESS
The Consumer Care Business which is the largest segment,
contributing to 54.5% of consolidated Sales registered growth
of 13.3% during the fiscal 2012-13. The Consumer Care Business
comprises the following categories:

RETAIL BUSINESS - NewU
Dabur operates its specialized beauty retail business under the
brand ‘New U’. This business is operated under Dabur’s whollyowned subsidiary H & B Stores Ltd. The store count at the end
of fiscal 2012-13 stood at 45 stores. Majority of the stores are
located in the NCR region in some of the most frequented and
popular malls.

Health Supplements
The Health Supplements portfolio grew by 16.2% in fiscal
2012-13 and now contributes 21.3% to Consumer Care sales.
The three key brands in this portfolio are Dabur Chyawanprash,
Dabur Honey and Dabur Glucose.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Dabur takes pride in the fact that our people, organizational
culture and values enable us to be decentralised and
entrepreneurial. Dabur is committed to creating a transparent
organization and a highly conducive environment that is
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focused on people and their capability, enabling them to deliver
superior performance.

distribution, innovative marketing mix and new initiatives
across categories and businesses.

As on March 31, 2013, the Company had 6,154 employees on its
rolls all across the globe.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS
The Company has a well placed, proper and adequate internal
control system, which ensures that all assets are safeguarded
and protected and the transactions are authorized, recorded
and reported correctly. The Company’s internal control
system comprises audit and compliance by in-house Internal
Audit Division, supplemented by internal audit checks from
PricewaterhouseCoopers Private Limited, the Internal Auditors
and various transaction auditors.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
At Dabur, we believe that developing superior products do not
just drive volume growth, but also go a long way in commanding
price advantage, thereby ensuring profitable growth for the
organisation. In fiscal 2012-13, Dabur took important steps to
strengthen its R&D set-up while focusing on four key objectives:
product quality and safety, new product development, superior
consumer satisfaction and reduced costs.
FINANCIAL REVIEW (ON A CONSOLIDATED BASIS)
Highlights of Dabur India Limited’s financial performance
during fiscal 2012-13 on a consolidated basis are:
•
Net Sales grew by 16.3% to ` 6,146.4 crores in fiscal
2012-13 from ` 5,283.2 crores in fiscal 2011-12
•
Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and
Amortization (EBITDA) increased to ` 1,124.3 crores
in fiscal 2012-13, from ` 947.6 crores in fiscal 2011-12,
recording a growth of 18.7%
•
Profit After Tax (PAT) increased to ` 763.4 crores in fiscal
2012-13 as against ` 644.9 crores in fiscal 2011-12, up by
18.4%
•
Earnings Per Share (EPS) increased to ` 4.35 in fiscal
2012-13 from ` 3.68 in fiscal 2011-12
OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS
Rural India offers long term growth opportunities and our
initiatives to increase our direct coverage are a step towards
exploiting these opportunities. In addition, we are planning
to leverage our brands, deep understanding of consumer
behaviour and robust distribution network for new offerings
within Health Care, HPC and Foods categories. In terms of
threats, the key threats are volatility in exchange rates and
inflation in input costs.
OUTLOOK
Going ahead, macroeconomic headwinds and heightened
competitive intensity notwithstanding, we would strive to
continue to drive profitable growth on the back of enhanced

RISK MANAGEMENT
Dabur, like any other enterprise having national as well global
business interests, is exposed to business risks which may be
internal as well as external. Key risks faced by the company
include, macro-economic slow down which can put pressure
on disposable incomes, persistently high inflationary trends,
unfavorable exchange rate fluctuations and any unexpected
changes in regulatory framework. To ensure our long-term
corporate success, it is therefore essential that risks be
effectively identified, analyzed and then mitigated by means
of appropriate control measures. We have a comprehensive
risk management system in place, which enables us to
recognize and analyze risks early and to take the appropriate
action.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis
describing the Dabur’s objectives, projections, estimates and
expectations may be ‘forward looking statements’ within the
meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results
may differ substantially or materially from those expressed or
implied.
Important developments that could affect the
Company’s operations include a downward trend in the
FMCG industry, rise in input costs, exchange rate fluctuations
and significant changes in political and economic
environment, environment standards, tax laws, litigation and
labour relations.

(For full version of Management Discussion and Analysis please refer to full Annual Report
which is available at the website of the Company www.dabur.com)
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Corporate Governance refers to the systematic process by
which businesses are operated, regulated and controlled
to enhance their wealth generating capacity and fulfil
social obligation. This chapter, along with the chapters
on Management Discussion and Analysis and Additional
Shareholders Information, briefly reports Dabur’s compliance
with Clause 49 of Listing Agreement.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY
Dabur’s philosophy is to constantly endeavour to achieve
business excellence and optimize long term value for future
growth and ensure that the ambitious plans are achieved in
sustainable perspective through ethical business conduct.
Strong Governance practices by the Company have boosted the
level of stakeholder`s confidence testified by improved market
capitalization, high credit ratings and various awards bagged by
the Company for its brands, stocks, environmental impact, etc. In
recognition of excellence in Corporate Governance, Dabur India
limited has been awarded the prestigious `Golden Peacock
award for excellence in Corporate Governance` for the year
2012 in the FMCG Sector.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 		
Composition of the Board
As on March 31, 2013, Dabur’s Board consists of 12 members.
Besides the Chairman, who is a Non-Executive Promoter Director,
the Board comprises of two Executive Directors, three NonExecutive Promoter Directors and six Non-Executive Independent
Directors. The composition of the Board as on 31st March, 2013 is
in conformity with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.
Number of Board Meetings
Minimum four prescheduled Board meetings are held every
year. The Board of Directors met four times during the year
on: April 30, 2012; July 23, 2012; October 26, 2012 and January
29, 2013. The maximum gap between any two meetings was
less than four months, as stipulated under Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement.
Directors’ Attendance Record and Directorships held
As mandated by Clause 49, none of the Directors is a member
of more than 10 Board level committees, or Chairman of more
than 5 committees in which he is a member.
Table 1 : Gives details of the Board as on March 31, 2013.

Table 1: Composition of the Board of Directors of Dabur India Limited
Name of the Directors

Category #

Anand Burman (Dr)
Chairman/PD / NED
Amit Burman
Vice Chairman/ PD / NED
Mohit Burman
PD/NED
Saket Burman
PD/NED
P D Narang
ED
Sunil Duggal
ED
P N Vijay
ID
S Narayan (Dr)
ID
R C Bhargava
ID
Albert Wiseman Paterson
ID
Analjit Singh**
ID
Ajay Dua (Dr)
ID
Sanjay Kumar Bhattacharyya***
ID

Attendance Particulars
Number of
Last
Board Meetings
AGM
Held Attended
4
4
Yes
4
4
Yes
4
4
Yes
4
4
Yes
4
4
Yes
4
4
Yes
4
4
Yes
4
2
No
4
3
No
4
1
No
1
0
NA
4
4
No
2
2
NA

No. of other Directorships and Committee
memberships/chairmanships*
Other
Committee
Committee
Directorships Memberships Chairmanships
8
0
0
6
3
0
6
3
0
0
0
0
4
0
1
1
1
0
1
0
0
6
3
0
8
3
5
0
0
0
NA
NA
NA
2
1
0
2
1
1

#  	PD – Promoter Director; NED – Non-Executive Director; ID – Independent Non-Executive Director; ED – Executive Director
* 1. Excluding private limited companies, foreign companies and companies under section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956.
		 2. Only two Committees viz. the Audit Committee and the Shareholders / Investors Grievance Committee are considered.
** Ceased to be Director w.e.f. 16.07.2012 ; *** Appointed as Additional Director w.e.f. 23.07.2012.

Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors
The shareholding of all Non Executive Directors is nil, except for
Dr Anand Burman who holds 660000 equity shares of ` 1/- each
of the company as on 31.03.2013.
Information supplied to the Board
The Board has complete access to all information with the
Company. All Board meetings are governed by a structured
agenda which is backed by comprehensive background
information. Since the year 2011-12, as a part of green initiative,
the Company is holding and convening its Board (including
committee) meetings on Ipad, in paperless form. All agenda
papers are uploaded in a web based programme for information,
perusal and comments, etc. of the Board members.
All information including inter alia information as required
under clause 49 of the Listing Agreement are regularly provided
to the Board, as part of the agenda papers at least 2 weeks in
advance of the Board meetings.

The Board has established procedures to periodically review
compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company,
prepared by the Company, as well as steps taken by the
Company to rectify instances of non-compliance.
Role of Board Members
Dabur India Limited has laid down a clear policy defining
the structure and role of Board members. The policy of the
Company is to have a Non-Executive Chairman – presently
Dr Anand Burman, a Chief Executive Officer (CEO) – presently Mr
Sunil Duggal, and an optimum combination of executive and
non executive promoter/ independent Directors. There is clear
demarcation of responsibility and authority amongst them.
Fees and compensation, if any, paid to any Non-Executive
Director, including Independent Director, is fixed by the Board
of Directors and is previously approved by the shareholders at
the General Body Meeting.
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Remuneration paid to Directors
Details of remuneration paid to Directors for the year 2012-13
is as under:
1) Sitting fee
Dr Anand Burman ` 105000, Mr Amit Burman ` 1,35,000,
Mr Mohit Burman ` 60,000, Mr Saket Burman ` 60,000,
Mr P N Vijay ` 2,40,000, Dr S Narayan ` 1,20,000, Mr R C
Bhargava ` 1,05,000, Mr Analjit Singh – Nil, Mr Albert
Wiseman Paterson ` 15,000, Dr Ajay Dua ` 2,10,000 and Mr
Sanjay Kr Bhattacharyya ` 30,000.
2) Salary & Perquisites and Superannuation Fund
Mr P D Narang was paid ` 5,27,85,335 as salary & perquisite
and ` 27,29,247 as superannuation fund. Mr Sunil
Duggal was paid ` 5,27,58,620 as salary & perquisite and
` 26,01,637 as superannuation fund.
No commission was paid to directors during the year.
During 2012-13, the Company did not advance any loan to any
of its Directors.
No Stock options were granted to Mr P D Narang and
Mr Sunil Duggal during the year. However out of the stock
options granted during the earlier years, Mr P D Narang and
Mr Sunil Duggal have exercised 166544 Stock Options each and
were allotted equivalent number of shares.
Pursuant to the approval of shareholders in the Annual General
Meetings held on September 9, 1998 and subsequently on
September 5, 2002; July 13, 2007; August 31, 2010 and July 17,
2012 in addition to the above remuneration, certain Directors
are entitled to post separation fee, as contained in the
resolution passed in the aforesaid meeting, on cessation of their
employment and directorship with the Company. The notice
period for the two Executive Directors, namely Mr P D Narang
and Mr Sunil Duggal, is of three months.
CODE OF CONDUCT
Commitment to ethical professional conduct is a must for every
employee, including Board members and senior management
of Dabur. The Code of Conduct is available on the website of
the Company www.dabur.com. All Board members and senior
management personnel affirm compliance with the Code of
Conduct annually. A declaration signed by the Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) to this effect is enclosed at the end of the Corporate
Governance in full Annual Report.
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Dabur has four Board level committees:
•
Audit Committee,
•
Remuneration cum Compensation Committee,
•
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, and
•
Nomination Committee.
a) Audit Committee
Composition
As on March 31, 2013, the Audit Committee comprises of
four Independent Directors. They are Mr P N Vijay (Chairman),
Mr R C Bhargava, Dr S Narayan and Dr Ajay Dua.
Meetings and Attendence
The Audit Committee held six meetings during
2012-13 on: April 30, 2012; July 23, 2012; October 26,
2012; November 15, 2012; January 29, 2013 and February 25,
2013.The time gap between any two meetings was less than
four months. Out of the 6 committee meetings held,
4

Mr P N Vijay & Dr Ajay Dua attended all meetings and
Mr R C Bhargava & Dr S Narayan attended 5 and 4 meetings
respectively.
The Director responsible for the finance function, the head
of internal audit and the representative of the statutory
auditors, internal auditors and cost auditors are permanent
invitees to the Audit Committee. Mr A K Jain, Sr General
Manager (Finance) & Company Secretary, is the Secretary
to the Committee.
All members of the Audit Committee have accounting and
financial management expertise. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee attended the Annual General Meeting (AGM)
held on July 17, 2012 to answer shareholders` queries.
The powers and role of the Audit Committee are in line
with clause 49 II (C) & (D) of the Listing agreement with
the Stock Exchanges. The Committee also mandatorily
reviews all matters mentioned in the clause 49 II (E) of the
said Agreement.
Further the Audit Committee is also presented with
the following information on related party transactions
(whenever applicable):
• A statement, in summary form, of transactions with
related parties in the ordinary course of business.
• Details of material individual transactions with related
parties, which are not in the normal course of business.
• Details of material individual transactions with related
parties or others, which are not on an arm’s length basis,
along with the Management’s justification for the same.
b)

Remuneration cum Compensation Committee
Composition
As on March 31, 2013, the Remuneration cum Compensation
Committee comprises of Mr P N Vijay (Chairman),
Dr S Narayan, being independent Directors and Dr Anand
Burman, a Non-Executive Promoter Director.
Meetings and Attendance
The Remuneration cum Compensation Committee held two
meetings during 2012-13 on: April 30, 2012 and July 23, 2012
which were attended by all the committee members.
The Remuneration cum Compensation Committee of the
Company, inter-alia, evaluates, recommends to the Board
and approves the Executive Directors compensation plans,
policies and programmes of the Company. This Committee
also has the responsibility for administering Employee
Stock Option Scheme of the Company.
Remuneration Policy
The Company’s remuneration strategy is marketdriven and aims at attracting and retaining high calibre
talent. As per the shareholders’ approval obtained at
the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
July 17, 2012, commission is paid to non-executive
directors at a rate not exceeding 1% of the net profits
per annum of the Company, calculated in accordance
with the provisions of Sections 198, 349 and 350 of the
Companies Act, 1956.
Besides sitting fees, the Non-Executive Chairman is also
entitled to commission out of the profits of the Company,
as approved by the Board and within the overall limits
prescribed by the Companies Act, 1956. Non Executive
Promoter Directors and Independent Directors are
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c)

d)

entitled to sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board
of Directors and committees thereof within the prescribed
limits. Remuneration of the Executive Directors consists
of a fixed component and a variable performance incentive.
The Remuneration cum Compensation Committee makes
annual appraisal of the performance of the Executive
Directors based on a detailed performance evaluation,
and recommends the compensation payable to them,
within the parameters approved by the shareholders, to
the Board for their approval.
Nomination Committee
Dabur’s Nomination Committee consists of Dr Anand Burman,
Non-Executive Promoter Director, as Chairman and Mr. Amit
Burman, Non-Executive Promoter Director. The Committee
held one meeting during 2012-13 on July 23, 2012 which was
attended by both the members.
Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Composition
As on March 31, 2013, the Committee consists of four members,
Mr P N Vijay, Independent Director as Chairman, Dr Ajay
Dua, Independent Director, Mr Amit Burman, Non Executive
Promoter Director and Mr P D Narang, Executive Director. Name
of the Committee was changed from Shareholders’/ Investors’
Grievance & Share Transfer Committee to Stakeholders
Relationship Committee on January 29, 2013.
Meetings and Attendance
The Committee met four times during the year on: April 30,
2012; July 23, 2012; October 26, 2012 and January 29, 2013
which were attended by all the members.
Mr A K Jain, Sr General Manager (Finance) and Company
Secretary, is the Compliance Officer. The Committee
ensures cordial investor relations and specifically looks into
redressing shareholders’/ investors’ complaints/ grievances
pertaining to share transfers, non-receipt of annual reports,
non-receipt of dividend and other allied complaints.
During the year 40 complaints were received, all were
attended and there were nil complaints pending as on
31.03.2013.
In order to provide efficient services to investors and
for speedy redressal of the complaints, the Board of
Directors has delegated the power of approving transfer
and transmission of shares and other matters like split
up / sub-division and consolidation of shares, issue
of new certificates on re-materialization, sub-division,
consolidation and exchange, subject to a maximum of
10000 shares per case and for dematerialization upto a
maximum of 40000 shares per case, jointly to any two of
Mr A K Jain, Sr General Manager (Finance) and Company
Secretary, Mr Praveen Mudgal – Joint Company Secretary
and Mrs Sarita Agrawal - Manager (Secretarial). Transfer of
shares takes place once in a fortnight.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES - MONITORING FRAMEWORK
The Company monitors performance of its subsidiary
companies, inter alia, by the following means:
i)
The Audit Committee reviews Financial Statements of the
subsidiary companies, along with investments made by
them, on a quarterly basis.
ii) The Board of Directors reviews the Board meeting
minutes and statements of all significant transactions and
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arrangements, if any, of the subsidiary companies.
Dabur does not have a material non-listed Indian subsidiary.
MANAGEMENT
Management Discussion and Analysis
The Abridged Annual Report has a chapter on abridged
Management Discussion and Analysis, which forms part of this
report.
DISCLOSURES
Related Party Transactions
Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions
i.e. transactions of the Company of material nature, with its
Promoters, the Directors or the Management, their Subsidiaries
or Relatives, etc. that may have potential conflict with the
interests of the Company at large.
The Senior Management personnel make disclosures to the
Board periodically regarding
•
their dealings in the Company`s share, and
•
all material financial and commercial transaction with the
Company
where they have personal interest, stating that the said dealings
and transactions, if any, had no potential conflict with the
interests of the Company at large.
The material, financial and commercial transactions where Key
Management Personnel have personal interest forms part of the
disclosure on related parties referred to in Notes to abridged
Annual Accounts, which was reported to the Board of Directors.
The detailed related party transactions can also be referred to in
Notes to abridged Annual Accounts.
Disclosure of accounting treatment in preparation of
financial statements
The Company has followed prescribed accounting standards
including AS-30 (which is recommendatory one) laid down
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) in
preparation of its financial statements.
Details of non-compliance by the Company
Dabur has complied with all the requirements of regulatory
authorities. No penalties/strictures were imposed on the Company
by stock exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter
related to capital market during the last three years.
Whistle-Blower Policy
The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its business
activities and in line with the best international governance
practices, Dabur has set up a direct touch initiative, under
which all employees / business associates have direct access
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, and also to a threemember direct touch team (including one senior woman
member) established for this purpose. The above mechanism
has been displayed on the Company’s intranet as well as on
the Company’s website www.dabur.com. The Audit Committee
periodically reviews the existence and functioning of the
mechanism. It reviews the status of complaints received under
this policy on a quarterly basis. No personnel have been denied
access to the Audit committee.
CEO/ CFO certification
The CEO and CFO certification on the financial statements and
the cash flow statement for the year have been provided to the
Board and is also enclosed at the end of Corporate governance
report attached to the full Annual Report.
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Risk Management
Dabur has established comprehensive risk assessment and
minimization procedures, which are reviewed by the Board
periodically. At Dabur, we have a structure in place to identify
and mitigate the various risks faced by the Company from time
to time. At every Board meeting, the risk register is reviewed by
the Board, new risks are identified, the same are then assessed,
controls are designed, put in place and enforced through the
process owner, and a fixed timeline is set for achieving the same.
The Company has adopted COSO framework for internal control.
Under this framework, risks are identified as per each process
flow, and control systems instituted to ensure that the risks in
each business process are mitigated.
SHAREHOLDERS
Reappointment/Appointment of Directors
As per the Articles of Association of Dabur, one-third of its
Directors retire every year and, if eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at every Annual General Meeting. Consequently,
Dr Anand Burman, Mr P D Narang, Dr Ajay Dua and Mr R C
Bhargava, would retire this year and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Mr Sanjay Kumar
Bhattacharyya appointed as additional director by the Board has
been proposed to be appointed as Director in the forthcoming
Annual general meeting. The Company has received a notice in
writing from a member proposing his candidature for the office
of Director. Their brief resumes, the nature of their expertise in
specific functional areas, names of Companies in which they
have directorship, committee membership/chairmanship, their
shareholding etc. are furnished in the explanatory statement to
the Notice of Annual General Meeting, attached at the end.
MEANS OF COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Financial Results: The quarterly financial results are normally
published in The Economic Times/ Times of India /Mumbai
Mirror/Mint and Navbharat Times newspapers. Financial results
for Quarters 1 to 4 for the year under review were published on
July 25,2012; October 28, 2012; January 31, 2013 & May 02, 2013
(tentative) respectively.
News Releases/ Presentations: Official press releases,
presentations made to the media, analysts, institutional investors,
etc. are displayed on the Company’s website www.dabur.com
Website: The Company`s website www.dabur.com contains
a separate section ‘Investors Relations’ for use of investors. The
quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results, official news
releases and presentations made to institutional investors
and to analysts are promptly and prominently displayed
on the website. Corporate Communications made to the
Stock Exchanges, Annual Report of subsidiary companies,
information on various investor related topics are also posted
on the website.
Communication to shareholders on email: As mandated by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) documents like Notices,
Annual Report, ECS advices for dividends, etc. were sent to the
shareholders at their email address, as registered with their
Depository Participants/ Company/ RTA. This helped in prompt
delivery of document, reduce paper consumption, save trees
and avoid loss of documents in transit.
Exclusive email ID for investors: The Company has designated
the email id investors@dabur.com exclusively for investor
servicing, and the same is prominently displayed on the
Company`s website www.dabur.com.
6

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
Details of last three General Body Meetings held is as under:
Annual General Meetings for Financial year ended
2009-10, 2010-11 and 2011-12 were held on August 31, 2010;
July 15, 2011 and July 17, 2012 respectively at 11.00 a.m. at Air
Force Auditorium, Subroto Park, New Delhi-110010.
Special Resolutions taken up in the last three AGMs : In AGMs
held on August 31, 2010; July 15, 2011 and July 17, 2012 - 8, nil
and 3 special resolutions were passed, respectively.
Postal Ballot: During the year under review, no resolutions
were passed through postal ballot.
COMPLIANCE
Mandatory requirements
The company has complied with mandatory requirements of
Clause 49 of the Listing agreement with the Stock Exchanges.
The detailed Compliance Report in this respect as per suggested
list of items given in Annexure IC of the said clause has been
given in the Corporate Governance Report attached to the full
Annual Report.
ADOPTION OF NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS
a) Maintenance of the Chairman’s office
The Company maintains the office of Non-Executive
Chairman and provides for reimbursement of expenses
incurred in performance of his duties.
b) Tenure of Independent Directors
No specific tenure has been specified for the Independent
Directors.
c) Remuneration Committee
Dabur has a Remuneration cum Compensation
Committee that comprises of three members, two
members being Independent Directors and one being
Non-Executive Director. The Chairman of the Committee is
an Independent Director.
d) Shareholders Rights
Half yearly audited financial statements are uploaded on
the Company`s website www.dabur.com in the month of
November every year.
e) Training of Board Members
Board members are regularly trained and updated
on the business model of the Company, changes in
relevant laws, their duties/ responsibilities and liability as
a director.
f) Audit Qualifications
The Auditors have raised no qualification on the Financial
Statements of the Company.
g)
Mechanism for evaluation of Non-Executive Directors
The performance evaluation of Non-Executive
Directors is done through a peer-to-peer performance
evaluation of the Board of Directors. The Directors are
marked on a scale of 1 to 5, with respect to three broad
parameters namely – guiding strategy, monitoring
Management performance and development /
compensation and statutory compliance & Corporate
Governance.
h) Whistle-Blower Policy
Dabur has a Whistle-Blower Policy in place. The details
with regard to the functioning of this policy have been
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mentioned earlier in this report.
ADDITIONAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
Annual General Meeting : Date: July 17, 2013; Time: 11:00 am;
Venue: Air Force Auditorium, Subroto Park, New Delhi - 110010
Financial Year: April 1 to March 31
Book Closure: The dates of Book Closure are from the 25th
day of June, 2013 to the 2nd day of July, 2013, inclusive of both days.
Dividend Payment: Interim dividend of ` 0.65 per equity share
was paid on November 07, 2012 for the financial year 2012-13.
Final Dividend of `0.85 per equity share for the Financial year
2012-13 has been recommended by the Board of directors to
shareholders for their approval.
Listing: At present, the equity shares of the Company are

listed at Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE), and National
Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE). The Company has also filed
application with MCX Stock Exchange limited (MCX) for listing
of shares. The annual listing fees for the financial year 2013-2014
to NSE, BSE & MCX has been paid.
Dabur’s Stock Exchange codes
ISIN No:
INE016A01026
Mumbai Stock Code:
500096
National Stock Code:
DABUR
Bloomberg Code:
DABUR IB
Reuters Code:
DABU.BO
Stock Market Data: Table 2 and Chart A & B give details of stock
market data.

Table 2 : High, Low and Volume of Dabur’s shares for 2012-13 at BSE and NSE
Month
April 2012
May 2012
June 2012
July 2012
August 2012
September 2012
October 2012
November 2012
December 2012
January 2013
February 2013
March 2013

BOMBAY STOCK EXCHANGE LTD.
High (`)
Low (`)
Volume
(No. of shares)
112.70
104.35
1754066
109.95
98.20
6838109
114.05
102.05
1656802
120.20
112.90
2892011
124.75
118.15
3234140
130.80
123.85
1630926
135.25
124.25
3516805
128.70
122.15
1335056
131.15
127.75
3237685
131.75
126.00
2526382
133.85
126.45
4031984
137.70
121.79
1878074

Chart A: Dabur’s Share Performance versus BSE Sensex

NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE OF INDIA LTD.
High (`)
Low (`)
Volume
(No. of shares)
112.90
104.60
17304593
109.95
98.11
27731955
114.55
102.15
31852876
120.60
112.95
21372280
124.85
118.05
22056047
130.85
124.10
29440343
135.30
124.35
25820943
129.15
122.15
16760311
131.05
127.55
17092050
132.70
126.05
22009320
133.85
126.40
18135722
137.85
121.43
15589791

Chart B: Dabur’s Share Performance versus Nifty

Note: The charts have share prices and indices indexed to 100 as on the first working day of 2012-13.
Distribution of Shareholding
Tables 3 and 4 list the distribution of shareholding of the equity shares of the Company by size and by ownership class.
Table 3: Shareholding pattern by size as on March 31, 2013
Number of
Physical form
Dematerialisation form
Total
% of
Total
equity shares
number
share
number of
No. of
No. of shares
No. of
No. of shares
held
of share
holders
shares
share
share
holders
holders
holders
up to 5000
5001 – 10000
10001 and above
Total

% of
share
holding

11036

4357676

99617

38290463

110653

95.85

42648139

2.45

604

3700292

2991

18887058

3595

3.12

22587350

1.29

65

1116002

1129

1676583520

1194

1.03

1677699522

96.26

11705

9173970

103737 1733761041

115442

100 1742935011

100
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Table 4: Shareholding Pattern by ownership as on March 31, 2013
Particulars
Directors, promoters
and family members
FIIs
Mutual Funds/UTI
Financial Institutions/
Banks/Insurance Co.
NRIs
Corporates
Individuals
Total

No. of
% of
% of
No. of shares
share
share
share
held
holders holders
holding
27
0.02 1196738850
68.66
350
35
33
3151
1401
110445
115442

0.30
0.03
0.03

352748304
7024585
67082189

20.24
0.40
3.85

2.73
5639817
1.22
24810346
95.67
88890920
100 1742935011

0.33
1.42
5.10
100

Dematerlization of Shares and Liquidity
Trading in equity shares of the Company in dematerialized form
became mandatory from May 31, 1999. To facilitate trading in
demat form, in India, there are two depositories i.e. National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL). Dabur has entered into
agreement with both these depositories.
As on March 31, 2013, 99.47% shares of the Company were held
in dematerialized form.
The equity shares of the Company are frequently traded at
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of
India Ltd.
Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants/Options
The Company has 17473798 outstanding options as on March
31, 2013, with vesting period from 1 to 5 years from the date of grant.
Details of Public Funding Obtained in the last three years
Dabur has not obtained any public funding in the last three years.
Registrar and Transfer Agent
Details of the Registrar and Transfer Agent are given below:
•
Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Unit: Dabur India Limited
1. 305, New Delhi House, 27, 2. Plot No. 17-24,
Barakhamba Road, 		 Vithal Rao Nagar, Madhapur,
New Delhi-110001.		 Hyderabad- 500081
Phone No.: 011- 43681700, 		 Phone No.: 040- 23420818,
Fax No. : 011-43681710		 Fax No. 040-23420814
Website: www.karvy.com		 Email id: einward.ris@karvy.com
Share Transfer System
All share transfer and other communications regarding share
certificates, change of address, dividends, etc. should be
addressed to Registrar and Transfer Agents.
Stakeholders Relationship Committee is authorized to
approve transfer of shares in the physical segment. The
Committee has delegated the authority for approving
transfer and transmission of shares and other related matters
to the officers of the Company. Such transfers take place on
weekly basis. A summary of all the transfers/ transmissions
etc. so approved by officers of the Company is placed at
every Committee meeting. All share transfers are completed
within statutory time limit from the date of receipt, provided
the documents meet the stipulated requirement of statutory
provisions in all respects.
PLANT LOCATIONS
•
Sahibabad Unit I & II: Plot No. 22, Site IV, Sahibabad, Ghaziabad(U.P.) 201010, Tel.: 0120- 3008700 (30 Lines) Fax - 0120- 2779914
/ 4376924
•
Baddi:
8

Hajmola Unit, Honitus/Nature Care Unit : 109, HPSIDC
Industrial Area, Baddi, Distt Solan, H.P. - 173 205, Tel: 01795244385 Fax : 01795-244090
Chyawanprash Unit, Food Supplement Unit : 220-221,
HPSIDC Industrial Area, Baddi, Distt Solan, H.P. - 173 205,
Tel: 01795-244385 Fax : 01795-244090
Amla/Honey Unit, Shampoo Unit, Toothpaste Unit, Air
Freshener Unit, Toothpowder Unit : Village Billanwali
Lavana, Baddi, Distt Solan, H.P. - 173 205, Tel: 01795-244385
Fax : 01795-244090
Oral Care Unit, 601, Malku Majra, Nalagarh Road, Baddi,
Distt Solan, H.P. - 173 205, Tel : 01795-246363 Fax : 01795244090
Green Field Unit, Skin Care Unit, Honey Unit : Village
Manakpur, Tehsil Baddi, Distt Solan, H.P. - 174 101, Tel :
01795-244385 Fax : 01795-244090
•
Pantnagar: Unit I & II, Plot No.4, Sector-2, Integrated
Industrial Estate Pantnagar, Distt. Udham Singh Nagar,
Uttarakhand -263146, Tel: 05944-398500; 9760013990, 991,
992 Fax : 05944 - 250064
•
Jammu: Unit I, II & III, Lane No.3, Phase II, SIDCO Indl. Complex,
Bari Brahmna, Jammu, Tel: 01923-220123, 221970, 222341,
Fax: 01923 – 221970
•
Katni, 10.4 Mile Stone, NH -7, Village Padua, KATNI, (M.P.) 483442, Tel: 07622 - 262317, 262297, 297507
•
Alwar, SP-C 162, Matsya Industrial Area, Alwar - 301 030,
Rajasthan, Tel: 0144 - 2881542 / 5132101 / 5132102 Fax : 0144
- 2881302
•
Pithampur, 86-A, Kheda Industrial, Area Sector-3, Pithampur
– 454774, Distt. - Dhar (M.P.) Tel : 07292-400046 to 51, Fax :
07292–400112
•
Narendrapur, 9, Netaji Subhash Chandra Bose Road,
P.O. - Narendrapur, Kolkata - 700103, West Bengal, Tel:
033- 2477 2324 - 26, 2477 2620, 2477 2738, 2477 2740
(033)32919827/28, M-(0)9331048165, Fax : 033- 2477 2621
•
Silvassa: Unit I & II, Survey No. 225/4/1, Village Saily,
Silvassa– 396240, Dadra & Nagar Haveli (UT of India), Tel :
0260-2681071/72/73/74, Fax - 0260 – 2681075
•
Newai, G 50-59, IID Centre, NH-12, Road No.1, Newai 304020 Distt. Tonk ( Rajasthan), Tel: 01438 -223342, 223783,
223892, Fax No. 01438- 223010
•
Jalpaiguri, Kartowa, P.O. Mahanvrita Rajganj Distt.
Jalpaiguri (West Bengal) Pin 735135, Tel: 09800008456/57,
09933399800
•
Nashik, DD-55, MIDC, Ambad, Nashik – 422 010 (M.S.)
India, Tel: 0253- 6623222 Fax : 0253- 2383146, 2383577
ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE
•
For share transfer / dematerialisation of shares, payment of
dividend and any other query relating to the shares:
Ø Karvy Computershare Private Limited, 305, New Delhi
House, 27, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi 110001,
Tel: 011-43681700; Fax: 011-43681710
•
For queries of Analysts, FIIs, Institutions, Mutual Funds,
Banks and others:
Ø Mrs Gagan Ahluwalia, Dabur India Limited, Punjabi
Bhawan, 10 Rouse Avenue, New Delhi – 110002, Tel:
011-42786000; Fax: 011-23222051
•
Chief Compliance Officer:
Ø Mr A K Jain, Sr. G M (Fin.) & Co. Secretary, Dabur India
Limited, Punjabi Bhawan, 10 Rouse Avenue, New Delhi
– 110 002, Tel: 011 – 42786000; Fax: 011 – 2322 2051
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To,
The Members,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 38th Annual
Report on the business and operations of the Company,
together with the Audited Accounts for the financial year ended
March 31, 2013.
Financial Results
Financial results are presented in Table below:
(` in crore)
2012-13

2011-12

Turnover (including other income)

4436.28

3812.68

Profits before Tax

749.67

587.03

Less : Tax Expenses

158.69

123.79

Profit after Tax

590.98

463.24

Add: Balance in Profit & Loss Account
brought forward from the previous
year

864.11

714.22

1455.09

1177.46

General Reserve

60.00

50.00

Capital Reserve

0.00

0.14

Interim Dividend – Paid

113.29

95.81

Final Dividend – Proposed

148.15

130.66

Corporate tax on Dividend

43.56

36.74

Dividend adjustment of earlier years

0.05

0.00

Dividend tax adjustment of earlier
years

0.01

0.00

1090.02

864.11

Sub Total
Less: Appropriation to

Balance in Surplus Account

Dividend
The Company has paid an interim dividend of 65% (`0.65 per
share of Rupee one each) on November 7, 2012. We are pleased to
recommend a final dividend of 85% (`0.85 per share of Rupee one
each) for the financial year 2012-13. The final dividend, if approved
by the members, will be paid to members within the period
stipulated by the Companies Act, 1956. The aggregate dividend
for the year will amount to 150% (`1.50 per share of Rupee
one each) as against 130% (`1.30 per share of Rupee one each)
declared last year. The dividend payout ratio for the current year,
inclusive of corporate tax on dividend distribution, is at 51.61%.
Abridged Financial Statements
In accordance with the SEBI circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/7/2011
dated 5th October 2011, the abridged Annual Report containing
salient features of the Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account
for the Financial Year 2012-13, as prescribed in section 219(1)(b)
(iv) of the Companies Act, 1956 along with statement containing
salient features of Director`s Report (including Management
Discussion & Analysis and Corporate Governance Report), is
being sent to all shareholders who have not registered their
email address(es) for the purpose of receiving documents/
communication from the company in electronic mode.

Full version of the Annual Report 2012-13 containing complete
Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss Account, other
statements and notes thereto prepared as per the requirements
of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956; Directors Report
(including Management Discussion and Analysis, Corporate
Governance Report and Business Responsibility Report) are
being sent via email to all shareholders who have provided
their email address(es) and are also available at the Company`s
website at www.dabur.com.
Please note that you will be entitled to be furnished, free of cost,
the full Annual Report 2012-13, upon receipt of written request
from you, as a member of the Company.
Operations and Business Performance
Kindly refer to abridged Management Discussion & Analysis and
Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this report.
Corporate Governance
Dabur has adopted best corporate governance practices.
Besides adhering to the prescribed corporate governance
practices as per clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, it voluntarily
governs itself as per highest standards of ethical and responsible
conduct of business in line with local and global standards. In
recognition of excellence in Corporate Governance, Dabur India
limited has been awarded the prestigious `Golden Peacock
award for excellence in Corporate Governance` for the year
2012 in the FMCG Sector.
A certificate from Auditors of the Company regarding
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance, as
stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the
Stock Exchanges, is attached as Annexure-1 to the Director`s
Report contained in the full Annual Report.
Certificate of the CEO/CFO, inter alia, confirming the correctness
of the financial statements, compliance with Company`s Code
of Conduct, adequacy of the Internal Control measures and
reporting of matters to the Audit Committee in terms of Clause
49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, is also
attached in the Corporate Governance Report contained in the
full Annual Report.
Business Responsibility Report
At Dabur, fulfilment of environmental, social and governance
responsibility is an integral part of the way the Company
conducts its business. A detailed information on the
initiatives of the Company as enunciated in the National
Voluntary Guidelines on Social, Environmental and Economic
Responsibilities of Business, 2011` is provided in the Business
Responsibility Report, a copy of which will be available on the
Company`s website at www. dabur.com
Further, for Business Responsibility Report as stipulated under
Clause 55 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges,
Kindly refer to Business Responsibility Report section contained
in the full Annual Report.
Directors
During the year, Mr Analjit Singh, Independent Director had
resigned from the board on 16.07.2012 and Mr Sanjay Kumar
Bhattacharyya was appointed as additional Non Executive
Independent Director on 23.07.2012. Mr Bhattacharyya shall
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hold office upto the date of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting of the Company and being eligible offer himself for
reappointment.
In terms of Article 103 and 104 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Dr Anand Burman, Mr P D Narang, Dr Ajay
Dua and Mr R C Bhargava will retire by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment in terms of the provisions of Article 106 of
the Articles of Association of the Company.
The brief resumes of the Directors who are to be appointed/
re-appointed, the nature of their expertise in specific functional
areas, names of companies in which they have held directorships,
committee memberships/ chairmanships, their shareholding
etc., are furnished in the explanatory statement to the Notice of
the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
Your Directors recommend their appointment/ re-appointment
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 217(2AA) of the
Companies Act, 1956, with respect to Directors’ Responsibility
Statement, the Directors confirm:
i)
That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed and
no material departures have been made from the same;
ii) That they had selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently, and made judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
at the end of the financial year, and of the profit of the
Company for that period except to the extent mentioned
in notes to accounts;
iii) That they had taken proper and sufficient care for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
iv) That they had prepared the annual accounts on a going
concern basis.
Change in Capital Structure and Listing of Shares
The Company’s shares are listed on the National Stock Exchange
of India Limited (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)
and are actively traded. Application for listing on MCX Stock
Exchange Limited (MCX) has been filed by the Company.
In the year under review, following shares were allotted and
admitted for trading in NSE and BSE:Equity shares allotted against the options exercised by
employees pursuant to Employees Stock Option Scheme
of the Company:
• 677829 equity shares allotted on May 30, 2012.
• 142528 equity shares allotted on August 07, 2012.
• 13800 equity shares allotted on December 07, 2012.
Auditors and their Report
M/s G. Basu & Company, Chartered Accountants, Statutory
Auditors of the Company, will retire at the conclusion of the
10

ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment as statutory auditors for the
financial year 2013-14. The Company has received a letter dated
April 1, 2013 from them to the effect that their re-appointment,
if made, would be within the limit prescribed under section
224(1B) of the Companies Act, 1956, and that they are not
disqualified for such re-appointment within the meaning of
Section 226 of the Companies Act, 1956.
The Auditors have vide their letter dated April 22, 2013 also
confirmed that they have subjected themselves to the peer
review process of Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) and holds a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review
Board of the ICAI.
The observations of the Auditors, together with the notes to
Accounts referred to in the Auditors` Report, are self-explanatory
and do not call for any further explanation from the Directors.
Cost Auditors
M/s Ramanath Iyer & Company, Cost Accountants, were
re-appointed as Cost Auditors for the financial year 2013-14 to
conduct cost audit of the accounts maintained by the Company,
in respect of the various products prescribed under Cost Audit
Rules, 2011. Full particulars of the Cost Auditor are as under:
M/s Ramanath Iyer & Company
808, Pearls Business Park,
Netaji Subash Place, Pitampura,
New Delhi – 110088,
Telephone No. : 011-45655448
Email ID – Info@ramanathiyer.com
(Firm`s Membership No. 000019)
The Cost Audit Report for the Financial year 2011-12, issued by
M/s Ramanath Iyer & Company, Cost Auditors, in respect of the
various products prescribed under Cost Audit Rules, 2011, was
filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on December
28, 2012. The due date for filing the said Report with MCA was
February 28, 2013.
The Cost Audit Report for the Financial year 2012-13, in respect
of the various products prescribed under Cost Audit Rules, 2011,
is due to be filed with MCA on or before September 27, 2013
(being within 180 days from the end of reporting year).
Consolidated Financial Statements
In compliance with the Accounting Standard 21 on Consolidated
Financial Statements, this abridged Annual Report also includes
Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year
2012-13. Consolidated Turnover grew by 16.93% to ` 6270.62
crore as compared to ` 5362.82 crore in the previous year.
Similarly, net profit after tax and after minority interest for the
year at ` 763.42 crore is higher by ` 118.53 crore as compared
to ` 644.89 crore in the previous year.
Nature of business
There has been no change in the nature of business of the
Company. However, updates regarding new projects undertaken
by the subsidiary Companies is as under:
Dabur Egypt Limited (Egypt) has set up a new Green field
project with an approximate cost of EGP 6.5 crores (INR 51.87
crores) to support the expansion of its existing line of products
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and launch of certain new products. Commercial production at
the new project had commenced by the end of July, 2012.
Dabur Lanka (Pvt.) Limited (Srilanka) is in the process of setting
up a new project for manufacturing of fruit pulp based beverages
mainly for export involving an approximate project cost of INR
84.84 crores. The project is nearing completion and the commercial
production is scheduled to commence by May, 2013.
Asian Consumer care Pvt Ltd. (Bangladesh) is in the process of
setting up a new green field project involving an approximate
project cost of Tk 55 crore (INR 38.5 crores) for manufacturing
Hair oil, Shampoo, Tooth paste, etc. The commercial production
is scheduled to commence from July, 2013 tentatively.
Subsidiaries
During the year Weikfield International (U.A.E.) Ltd has ceased to
be the step down subsidiary of the Company. Further Namaste
Cosmeticos Ltda have been newly incorporated as a step down
subsidiary of the Company in Brazil.
After the close of the Financial Year, a new step down subsidiary
of the Company namely -Dabur Consumer Care (Private) Limited
has been incorporated on April 19, 2013, in Srilanka.
In terms of general approval granted by the Central Government
under Section 212(8) of the Companies Act, 1956, copies of
Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account, Report of the Board
of Directors and the Report of the Auditors of the subsidiary
companies have not been attached with the Balance Sheet
of the Company. The Company will make available these
documents and related detailed information upon request
by any shareholder of the Company/ subsidiary interested in
obtaining the same.
However, pursuant to Accounting Standard AS-21 issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Consolidated
Financial Statements presented by the Company include the
financial statements of its Subsidiaries. The Financial Statements
of the subsidiary companies are also available for inspection by
the shareholders at the Registered Office of the Company and
that of its respective subsidiaries. The Financial Statements of
each subsidiary shall also be available on Company’s website
www.dabur.com.
The following information in aggregate for each subsidiary has
been disclosed in the abridged consolidated balance sheet
(a) capital (b) reserves (c) total assets (d) total liabilities (e) details
of investment (except in case of investment in subsidiaries)
(f ) turnover (g) profit before taxation (h) provision for taxation
(i) profit after taxation (j) proposed dividend.
A statement of the holding company`s interest in the subsidiary
companies is attached as `Annexure 1` and forms part of this
report.
Employees Stock Option Plan
During the year, 742226 options in 4 tranches were granted to

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
eligible employees of the Company in terms of Employees Stock
Option Plan (Dabur ESOP 2000). During the year, 834157 options
were exercised by the employees after vesting. Accordingly,
the Company made the allotment of 677829 equity shares on
May 30, 2012, 142528 equity shares on August 07, 2012 and
13800 equity shares on December 07, 2012, against the options
exercised by the employees.
The particulars of options issued under the said Plan as required
by SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 are set out in the Director`s
Report contained in the full Annual Report.
Particulars of Employees
In terms of the provisions of section 217(2A) of the Companies
Act, 1956 read with Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules,
1975, the names and other particulars of employees are set out
in the Annexure to the Directors Report. However having regard
to the provisions of Section 219(1)(b)(iv) of the Companies Act,
1956 the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information
is being sent to all the members of the Company and others
entitled thereto. Any member interested in obtaining a copy
of such particulars may write to the Company Secretary at the
Registered office of the Company.
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo
Information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption,
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo as stipulated under
section 217 of the companies Act, 1956 is set out in the Director`s
Report contained in the full Annual Report.
Industrial Relations
The Company maintained healthy, cordial and harmonious
industrial relations at all levels. The enthusiasm and unstinting
efforts of employees have enabled the Company to remain at
the leadership position in the industry. It has taken various steps
to improve productivity across organization.
Acknowledgements
Your Directors place on record their gratitude to the Central
Government, State Governments and Company’s Bankers
for the assistance, co-operation and encouragement they
extended to the Company. Your Directors also wish to place on
record their sincere thanks and appreciation for the continuing
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Business Associates and Employees in ensuring an excellent all
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For and on behalf of the Board
Place : New Delhi
Date : April 30, 2013

(DR ANAND BURMAN)
CHAIRMAN

(For full version of Directors’ Report including Corporate Governance Report please refer to full Annual Report
which is available at the website of the Company www.dabur.com)
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(i) For the
financial
Year of the
subsidiaries
(ii) For the
previous
financial
year of the
subsidiaries
since they
become
the holding
company’s
subsidiaries.

Net aggregate
amount of
subsidiaries
Profit/(Loss)
dealt within
the holding
company’s
accounts :

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

Dabur
International
Ltd

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

(` 116266582) ` 2,41,82,27,632
AED
21,07,23,116

31.03.13

–

–

31.03.13

100%

–

Dabur
Egypt
Ltd*

(` 8,44,23,330) ` 98,60,77,171
AED 6,67,16,994

31.03.13

100%

37,91,00,000 17,00,000 Equity
Equity Shares of Shares of Pens
` 1 each fully
Sterling 1
Paid Up
each fully
Paid Up

H&B
Stores
Ltd

–

–

–

–

31.03.13

–

–

–

–

–

–

31.03.13

–

–

–

–

–

–

31.03.13

–

–

–

–

–

31.03.13

–

–

–

–

`
16,29,92,337
USD
31,02,701

`
36,67,35,112
USD 6756358

31.03.13

2.21%

5,65,000
Equity Shares
of US Dollar
1 each fully
paid up

Asian
African
Asian
Naturelle Dermoviva
Consumer Consumer Consumercare LLC*
Skin
Care Pvt. Care Ltd*
Pakistan
Essentials
Ltd*
(Pvt) Ltd*
Inc*

* Subsidiary under section 4(1)(c)		
Exchange Rate as on 31.03.2013, 1 AED= ` 14.78, 1 US $ = ` 54.28, 1 GBP = ` 82.10

6

(i) For the
financial
Year of the
subsidiaries
(ii) For the
previous
financial
year of the
subsidiaries
since they
become
the holding
company’s
subsidiaries.

Net aggregate
amount of
subsidiaries
Profit/(Loss)
not within
the holding
company’s
accounts :

5

4

Extent of
–
–
Holding
Subsidiary
31.03.13 31.03.13
Financial Year
ended on

–

3

–

Holding
Company's
Interest

2

Dabur Dabur
Nepal
(UK)
Pvt. Ltd.* Ltd.*

Name of the
Subsidiary

1

–

31.03.13

–

–

–

31.03.13

–

–

–

31.03.13

–

–

–

31.03.13

–

–

–

31.03.13

–

–

–

31.03.13

–

–

Hobi
Ra
Namaste
Hair
Healing
Urban
Kozmetik Pazarlama Laborat Rejuvenation
Hair Lab.
Lab.
Imalat
Limited ories LLC*
&
International International
Sanayi
Sirketi*
Revitalization
LLC*
LLC*
Ve Ticaret
Nigeria Ltd*
Anonim
Sirketi*

Statement Pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956 relating to Subsidiary Companies

–

–

–

–

(Dr. Anand Burman)
Chairman

For and on behalf of the Board

–

31.03.13 31.03.13 31.03.13

–

–

Dabur Namaste Dabur
Egypt
Cosme
Lanka
Trading
ticos
Pvt Ltd*
Ltd*
Ltda*
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AUDITORS’ REPORT
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR ON THE ABRIDGED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
To the Members of Dabur India Limited
The accompanying abridged financial statements, which
comprise the abridged balance sheet as at 31st March 2013,
the abridged statement of profit & loss and abridged cash
flow statement for the year then ended and related notes, are
derived from the audited financial statements of Dabur India
Limited for the year ended 31st March 2013. We expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those financial statement in our
report dated 30th April 2013.
The Abridged financial statements do not contain all the
disclosures required by the Accounting Standards referred to
in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956
(“the Act”) [applied in the preparation of the audited financial
statements of Dabur India Limited]. Reading the abridged
financial statements, therefore, is not a substitute for reading
the audited financial statements of Dabur India Limited.
Management’s Responsibility for the Abridged Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of a Abridged
of the audited financial statements in accordance with
[Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section
211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) and accounting

principles generally accepted in India].
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Abridged
financial statements based on our procedures, which were
conducted in accordance with Standard on Audition (SA) 810,
“Engagements to Report on Abridged Financial Statements”
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Abridged financial statements derived from
the audited financial statements of Dabur India Limited for the
year ended 31st March 2013 are a fair abridged of those financial
statements, in accordance with [Accounting Standards referred
to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956
(“the Act”) and accounting principles generally accepted in
India].
For G.Basu & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 301174E
Place : New Delhi
Date : April 30, 2013

Anil Kumar
Partner
Membership number: 9390

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
To the Member of Dabur India Limited
We have audited the accompanying financial statements
of Dabur India Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31st March 2013, and the statement of profit
and loss and cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in subsection (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the
Act”). This responsibility includes the design, implementation
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the financial statements give
the information required by the Act in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India:
(a) In the case of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31st March 2013;
(b) In the case of the statement of profit and loss, of the profit
for the year ended on that date; and
(c) In the case of the cash flow statement, of the cash flows for
the year ended on that date.
Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2003 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the
Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.
ABRIDGED ANNUAL REPORT 2012-13
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4
2.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) we have obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our
audit;
(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books;
(c) the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;
(d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit
and Loss and Cash Flow Statement comply with the
Accounting Standards referred to in subsection (3C)
of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956; and
(e) on the basis of written representations received
from the directors as on 31st March 2013, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2013, from
being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g)
of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies
Act, 1956.
For G.Basu & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 301174E

Place : New Delhi
Date: April 30, 2013

Anil Kumar
Partner
Membership number: 9390

and have been properly dealt with in the books of
accounts.
3.

4.

5.

(b)

6.
7.

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT AS REFERRED TO IN
PARA I OF THE SAID REPORT OF EVEN DATE
1.
(a) ‘The Company’ has maintained proper records
showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.
(b)

2.

14

The fixed assets have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals. As informed,
no material discrepancies between book records
and the physical inventories have been noticed on
such verification.

(c)

Fixed assets disposed of during the year were not
material enough to affect the going concern identity
of the company.

(a)

The inventories have been physically verified
at reasonable intervals during the year by the
management.

(b)

The procedures of physical verification of inventories
followed by the management are reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the company and
the nature of its business.

(c)

on the basis of our examination of the records of
inventory, we are of the opinion that `the company’
is maintaining proper records of inventory. The
discrepancies noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and book records were not material

‘The company’ has neither granted nor taken any loans,
secured or unsecured to/from companies, firms, or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section
301 of the Companies Act ,1956.
In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us there is an adequate internal
control system commensurate with the size of `the
company’ and the nature of its business for purchase of
inventory and fixed assets and on the sale of goods. During
the course of our audit no major weakness has been
noticed in the internal controls. We have not observed
any failure on the part of the company to correct major
weakness in internal control system.
(a) Based on audit procedures applied by us and
according to the information and explanations
provided by the management, we are of the opinion
that contracts or arrangements referred to in section
301 of the Act have been entered in the register
maintained under that section.

8.

9.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the transactions made in
pursuance of such contracts or arrangements have
been made at prices which appear reasonable as per
information available with ` the company’.

`The Company’ has not accepted any deposits from the
public.
In our opinion `the company’ has an internal audit system
commensurate with its size and nature of its business.
On the basis of records produced we are of the opinion
that prima facie cost records and accounts prescribed
by the Central Government under section 209 (1) (d) of
the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of products of `the
company’ covered under the rules under said section have
been maintained. However we are neither required to
carry out nor have carried out any detailed examination of
such accounts and records.
(a) According to information and explanations given to us,
`the company’ is regular in depositing with appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, investor education and protection
fund, employees state insurance, income tax, sales tax,
wealth tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, cess
and other statutory dues to the extent applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations given
to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the
aforesaid dues were outstanding as at 31st March, 2013
for a period of more than six months from the date of
becoming payable.
(b)

There is no disputed due on account of wealth tax
and cess. Dues on account of Sales Tax/ Income Tax/
Excise Duty /Service tax disputed by the company
and not being paid, vis-à-vis forums where such
disputes are pending are mentioned below:-

Dabur India Limited
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Name of the
Statute
Sales Tax and VAT
Laws

Natute of dues

Income Tax Act,
1961

Income Tax

Central Excise Act,
1944

Excise Duty

Service tax
(Finance Act 1994)

Period

Central Sales Tax
1999-00 to 2010-11
Act, Local Sales Tax
Act, Value Added
1997-98 to 1999-00, 2001-02 to 2003-04,
Tax, Entry Tax, etc. 2005-06 to 2006-07, 2008-09 to 2009-10

Service Tax

Amount
Forum where Pending
(` in Lacs)
522.74 DC, AC, DETC, REV, BOARD, A, A,
DETC (Commissioner’s Level)
300.06 Appellate Tribunal

1990-91 to 1998-99, 2006-07 to 2010-11
2006-07 & 2010-11

465.68 High Courts
12.29 Assessing Officer

1996-97 to 2002-03, 2008-09
1993 to 2001, 1996 & 1998

9.16 Commissioner (Appeal)
517.84 Dy. Commissioner

1994-2008

181.93 Commissioner (Appeal)

1994-2011

9758.92 Tribunal
0.28 Commissioner (Appeal)

2005
2001-2008

10. `The Company’ does not have accumulated losses at the
end of the financial year. `The Company’ has not incurred
cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.
11. Based on our audit procedures and as per the information
and explanations given by the management, we are
of the opinion that `the company’ has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to any financial institution, bank or
debenture holder.
12. ‘The company’ has not granted any loan or advance on the
basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures
and other securities.
13. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, `the Company’ is not a Chit
Fund/ Nidhi/ Mutual Benefit Fund/ Society. Accordingly,
paragraph 4 (xiii) of the order is not applicable.
14. Based on our examination of the records and
evaluations of the related internal controls, we are of
the opinion that proper records have been maintained
of the transactions and contracts relating to shares,
securities, debentures and other investments dealt in
by `the company’ and timely entries have been made
in the records. We also report that `the company’
has held the shares, securities, debentures and other
investments in its own name except for those pending
transfer in Company’s name.
15. `The company’ has given guarantees for loans taken by
others from banks or financial institutions. The terms and

199.80 Tribunal

16.
17.
18.

19.
20.
21.

conditions there-of are not prima facie prejudicial to the
interest of the company.
The term loans taken by `the company’ has been applied
for the purpose for which they were raised.
No short term fund has been applied for long term
purpose.
`The company’ has made preferential allotment of shares
under their ESOP Scheme to the parties covered in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956 during the year. The price at which these shares
were issued is not prima-facie prejudicial to the interest of
the company.
`The Company’ has not issued any secured debentures
during the year.
`The Company’ has not raised any fund through public
issue during the year.
Based on information and explanations furnished by the
management, which have been relied upon by us, there
were no frauds on or by `the company’ noticed or reported
during the year.
For G.Basu & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 301174E

Place : New Delhi
Date : April 30, 2013

Anil Kumar
Partner
Membership number: 9390
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5

ABRIDGED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT MARCH 31, 2013
(All amounts in ` Lacs, except share data)

Sl. No. Particulars
I
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Share holders' Funds

As at
March 31, 2013

As at
March 31, 2012

17,429

17,421

16,127
16,920
1,09,002

15,573
10,922
86,411

(a) Paid up Share Capital

2

i) Equity
(b) Reserves and Surplus
(i) Capital Reserves
(ii) Revenue Reserves
(iii) Surplus
Non-current liabilities
(a) Long Term borrowings
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

(c) Long-term provisions
Current Liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings
(b) Trade payables
(c) Other current liabilities
(d) Short-term provisions
Total
ASSETS
4 Non-current assets
(a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible assets
(ii) Intangible assets
(iii) Capital work-in-progress
(b) Non-current investments
(c) Long-term loans and advances
(d) Other non-current assets
5 Current assets
(a) Current investments
(b) Inventories
(c) Trade receivables
(d) Cash and cash equivalents
(e) Short-term loans and advances
(f ) Other current assets
Total

84

114

3,418

2,711

3,965

4,049

24,074
60,414
13,364
17,992
2,82,789

27,213
52,228
12,240
16,271
2,45,153

60,371
1,287
1,707
23,497
870
21,318

57,819
714
1,158
15,948
1,857
8,384

49,444
49,974
25,532
31,940
11,653
5,196
2,82,789

39,324
52,857
22,417
26,129
15,325
3,221
2,45,153

3

II

Note: Complete Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, other statements and notes thereto prepared as per the requirement
of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 are available at the Company’s website www.dabur.com at link http://www.dabur.
com/Annual-Reports-2012-13
As per our report of even date attached

For DABUR INDIA LIMITED

for G.BASU & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 301174E

DR ANAND BURMAN
Chairman

ANIL KUMAR
SUNIL DUGGAL
Partner
Whole Time Director
Membership No. 9390		
Place : New Delhi
Date  : April 30, 2013
16

P D NARANG
Whole Time Director
A K JAIN
Senior G.M. (Finance)
Cum Company Secretary
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ABRIDGED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2013

(All amounts in ` Lacs, except share data)

Sl. No. Particulars
I
Income
Revenue from operations *
Less: Excise duty
Net Revenue from Operations
II
Other Income
III
Total Income (I +II)
IV
Expenditure
(a) Cost of materials consumed
(b) Purchase of stock in trade
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and
stock-in-trade
(d) Employee benefits expenses
(e) Finance costs
(f ) Depreciation and Amortisation expenses
(g) Other Expenses
Total Expenditure ( a to g)
V
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (III - IV)
VI
Exceptional Items
VII
Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI)
VIII Extraordinary Items
IX
Profit/(Loss) before tax (VII - VIII)
X
1. Tax expense
2. Deferred Tax
XI
Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year from continuing operations (IX - X)
XII
Earnings per equity share in `
(a) Basic
(b) Diluted

For the
year ended
March 31, 2013

For the
year ended
March 31, 2012

4,39,911
(4,972)
4,34,939
8,689
4,43,628

3,79,626
(3,872)
3,75,754
5,514
3,81,268

1,65,805
63,029

1,48,370
60,294

2,583

(5,933)

28,124
1,840
7,324
99,956
3,68,661
74,967
74,967
74,967
15,162
707
59,098

24,337
1,410
6,588
83,010
3,18,076
63,192
63,192
(4,489)
58,703
11,445
934
46,324

3.39
3.37

2.92
2.90

3,64,668
73,722
30
1,491
4,39,911

3,20,017
58,132
41
1,436
3,79,626

* Details of Revenue from operations:
I
II
III
IV

Sale of products manufactured
Sale of goods traded
Revenue from services provided
Other operational Revenue
Total

As per our report of even date attached

For DABUR INDIA LIMITED

for G.BASU & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 301174E

DR ANAND BURMAN
Chairman

ANIL KUMAR
SUNIL DUGGAL
Partner
Whole Time Director
Membership No. 9390		
Place : New Delhi
Date  : April 30, 2013

P D NARANG
Whole Time Director
A K JAIN
Senior G.M. (Finance)
Cum Company Secretary
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7
Sl. No.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

ABRIDGED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2013
(All amounts in ` Lacs, except share data)
For the
For the
year ended
year ended
March 31, 2013
March 31, 2012

Particulars
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

70,254
(31,666)
(32,777)
5,811
26,129
31,940

As per our report of even date attached

For DABUR INDIA LIMITED

for G.BASU & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 301174E

DR ANAND BURMAN
Chairman

ANIL KUMAR
SUNIL DUGGAL
Partner
Whole Time Director
Membership No. 9390		
Place : New Delhi
Date  : April 30, 2013

52,012
(21,858)
(23,266)
6,888
19,241
26,129

P D NARANG
Whole Time Director
A K JAIN
Senior G.M. (Finance)
Cum Company Secretary

NOTES TO THE ABRIDGED BALANCE SHEET AND THE ABRIDGED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
(All amounts in ` Lacs, except share data)
2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1
		

Basis for preparation of accounts
The accounts have been prepared in accordance
with the historical cost convention (except for
specifically excluded treatment of accounts referred
to in Note No. 50) under accrual basis of accounting
as per Indian GAAP. Accounts and Disclosures
thereon comply with the Accounting Standards
specified in Companies (Accounting Standard)
Rules, other pronouncement of ICAI, provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956 and guidelines issued by
SEBI as applicable.

		 Indian GAAP enjoins management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect reported
amount of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses
and contingent liabilities pertaining to years,
the financial statement relate to. Actual result
could differ from such estimates. Any revision in
accounting estimates is recognized prospectively
from current year and material revision, including
its impact on financial statement, is reported in
notes to accounts in the year of incorporation of
revision.
		

All assets and liabilities have been classified as
current or non-current as per the company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Revised
Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956.

2.2
		

18

Recognition of Income and Expenses
(a) Sales and purchases are accounted for on the
basis of passing of title to the goods.

		

		

		

2.3
		
		

		

(b) Sales comprise of sale price of goods including
excise duty but exclude trade discount and sales
tax/Vat.
(c) Income/ loss from future trading of commodities,
forming part of inputs, is recognized at the
closing point of the contract. For open contracts
loss, if any, accrues on balance sheet date is
recognized. However profit, if any, accruing on
open contracts on balance sheet date is ignored.
(d) All the other incomes have been accounted
for on accrual basis except for those income
stipulated for recognition on realization basis
on the ground of uncertainty under AS-9 or
income or expenses referred to in appropriate
paragraphs of Note 2.5.
Fixed Assets
(a) Fixed assets are stated at carrying amount i.e.
cost less accumulated depreciation.
(b) Cost includes freight, duties, taxes and other
expenses incidental to acquisition and
installation.
(c) Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been provided
on straight line method at rates specified in
Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956 and
as per the useful lives of the assets estimated
by the management when useful life of the
assets is deemed less except for part of 5/1 Unit
Sahibabad, Alwar unit and Narenderpur unit and
for Motor Vehicles where depreciation has been
provided for on written down value methods at
the rates specified in the aforesaid Schedule.

Dabur India Limited
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NOTES TO THE ABRIDGED BALANCE SHEET AND THE ABRIDGED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
		

(d) Fixed Assets purchased for less than ` 0.05 have
been depreciated at the rate of 100%.

		 (e) Patents and trademarks are being amortized over
the period of ten years on straight line basis.
		

(f ) Softwares are being amortized over the period
of five years on straight line basis.

		

(g) For New Projects, all direct expenses and direct
overheads (excluding services provided by
employees in company’s regular payroll) are
capitalized.

		

(h) Capital Subsidy received against fixed capital
outlay is deducted from gross value of individual
fixed assets, forming part of subsidy scheme
granted, by way of proportionate allocation
of subsidy amount thereon. Depreciation is
charged on net fixed assets after deduction of
subsidy amount.

		

2.4
		

		

		

		

		

(i) During sale of fixed assets, any profit earned
towards excess of sale value over gross block of
assets (i.e. balancing charge) is transferred from
profit & loss account to capital reserve.
Impairment/discarding of Assets
(a) The company identifies impairable fixed assets
based on cash generating unit concept for
tangible fixed assets and asset specific concept
for intangible fixed assets at the year-end in
term of clause 5 to 13 of AS–28 and clause
83 of AS-26 respectively for the purpose of
arriving at impairment loss thereon, if any, being
the difference between the book value and
recoverable value of relevant assets. Impairment
loss, when crystallizes, is charged against
revenue of the year. 		
(b) Apart from test of impairment within the
meaning of AS-28, individual tangible fixed
assets of various CGU’s are identified for
writing down/discarding on the ground of
obsolescence, damage, redundancy & unusability at the year end.
(c) Further the company has assessed recoverable
value of each cash generating units (CGUs) and
each intangible asset based on value-in-use
method. Such assessment indicated the value
in use of corresponding assets higher than
corresponding carrying cost of assets thereby
ruling out the cause of further arriving at their
net-selling-price and exigency of provision
against impairment loss.
(d) CGUs include Narenderpur plant, Sahibabad
plant, each of plants situated at Nashik, Baddi,
Jammu, Rudrapur, Silvasa, Pitampur, Kanpur,
Alwar, Newai and Jalpaiguri.
(e) Annual discount rate considered for arriving at
value-in-use of assets of each CGU is 7.50% i.e.
the average interest rate of external borrowing
plus risk factor @ 2.00 % per annum.

2.5. Financial Assets & Liabilities
		
(a) Financial assets held for trading
			
These assets relate to equity instruments, mutual
funds held for short term which is carried at fair
value. The difference of cost and fair value is
accounted for as loss or income, as the case may
be, in profit & loss account.
		
(b) Financial assets available for sale
			 These relate to non-current investments e.g.
Equity Instruments/ Government Securities
held for long term which is carried at fair value.
The difference between cost and fair value is
accounted for in investment revaluation reserve
forming part of equity.
		 (c) Other financial assets/liabilities – Loans,
Receivables, Payables
			 These include all remaining items of assets
and liabilities, (excluding equity, fixed (tangible
& intangible) assets, inventories and specific
exemptions referred to in note 2.5 to follow),
being carried at amortized cost. The difference
between unamortized value and amortized
value is accounted for as a loss or income, as the
case may be, in profit & loss account.
			

No amortization is made for financial assets/
liabilities bearing floating rate of interest or
where amortization has immaterial impact on
profitability in AS - 30.

		
(d) Financial Instruments
			 These relate to off-balance sheet exposure
towards foreign exchange of the nature of
currency fluctuation or forward contract, being
marked to market, entered into with the object
of hedging against adverse currency fluctuations
(not being for trading and speculation) in
respect of import/export commitments.
			

Financial Instruments are held at fair value and
the profit or loss arising on year closing date on
account of difference between contract rate and
exchange rate (the latter being the fair value)
on open contracts relevant to maturity date is
recognized as profit or loss of the year appearing
under broad head of “Finance Cost”.

		 (e) Fair value of financial assets – held for trading is
determined on the basis of market quotation/
NAV issued by investees. In the absence of scope
of determination of fair value, same are held at
cost.
		 (f) Amortized cost is carried at by way of discounting
future cash inflow/outflow in respect of relevant
asset/liability as on reporting date against
application of effective rate of interest.
		 (g) Interest in subsidiaries/associates/joint venture,
employees related dues, obligation under
financial lease (in the capacity of lessee/ lessor)
have been left out of the purview of treatments
referred to herein for financial assets/liabilities
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because of different accounting standards
dealing with them.

		 (h) No amortized value of fiscal provision or
advance tax has been considered because of
period of uncertainty of their adjustment.

2.11 Income Tax and Deferred Tax
		
The liability of company on account of income tax is
estimated considering the provisions of the Income
Tax Act, 1961.
		

2.6

Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and
Associates
		 These are held for long term and valued at cost reduced
by diminution of permanent nature therein, if any.
		

No profit or losses of subsidiaries are accounted for.

2.7
		

Research and Development Expenses
Contributions towards scientific research expenses
are charged to the Profit & Loss Account in the year
in which the contribution is made.

2.8
		

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net
realizable value. Basis of determination of cost
remains as follows:

		

(a) Raw material, Packing Material, Stores & Spares :
Moving weighted Average basis

		

(b) Work-in-progress : Cost of Input plus overhead
upto the stage of completion

Deferred tax is recognized, subject to the
consideration of prudence, on timing differences
being the difference between taxable income and
accounting income that originate in one year and
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent years.

2.12 Contingent Liabilities
		
Disputed liabilities and claims against the company
including claims raised by fiscal authorities (e.g.
Sales Tax, Income Tax, Excise etc.), pending in appeal/
court for which no reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation or which are remotely
poised for crystallization are not provided for in
accounts but disclosed in notes to accounts.
		

However, present obligation as a result of past
event with possibility of outflow of resources, when
reliably estimable, is recognized in accounts.

2.13 Foreign Currency Translation
		

(a) Transactions in foreign currencies are
recognized at rate of overseas currency ruling
on the date of transactions. Gain/Loss arising
on account of rise or fall in overseas currencies
vis-a-vis reporting currency between the date of
transaction and that of payment is charged to
Profit & Loss Account.

		

2.10 Retirement Benefits
		
Liabilities in respect of retirement benefits to
employees are provided for as follows:-

(b) Receivables/payables (excluding for fixed
assets) in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rate ruling at the year end date and
the resultant gain or loss, is accounted for in the
Profit & Loss Account.

		

		
(a) Defined Benefit Plans
			 i) Leave Salary of employees on the basis of
actuarial valuation as per AS-15 (revised).

(c) Increase / decrease in foreign currency loan on
account of exchange fluctuation are debited /
credited to Profit and Loss Account.

		

(d) Impact of exchange fluctuation is separately
disclosed in notes to accounts

		 (c) Finished Goods : Cost of input plus appropriate
overhead
2.9
		

Deferred Entitlement on Leave Travel Concession
In terms of opinion of the Expert Advisory
Committee of the ICAI, the Company has provided
liability accruing on account of deferred entitlement
towards Leave Travel Concession in the year in which
the employees concerned render their services.

			

ii) Post separation benefits of directors, which
is of the nature of long term benefit, on the
Basis of actuarial valuation as per AS-15
(revised).

			

iii) Gratuity Liability on the basis of actuarial
valuation as per AS 15 (revised)

		
(b) Defined Contribution Plans
			 i) Liability for superannuation fund on the
basis of the premium paid to insurance
company in respect of employees covered
under Superannuation Fund Policy.

2.14 Employee Stock Option Purchase (ESOP)
		
Aggregate of quantum of option granted under the
scheme in monetary term (net of consideration of
issue to be paid in cash) in terms of intrinsic value
has been shown as Employees Stock Option Scheme
outstanding in Reserve and Surplus head of the
Balance Sheet with corresponding debit in deferred
Employee Compensation under ESOP appearing
as Miscellaneous Expenditure under broad head of
non-current assets as per guidelines to the effect
issued by SEBI.
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ii) Provident fund & ESI on the basis of actual
liability accrued and paid to trust / authority.

(c) Voluntary Retirement Scheme, if paid, is
charged to revenue in the year of payment.

(a) With the exercise of option and consequent
issue of equity share, corresponding ESOP
outstanding is transferred to share premium
account.
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(b) Employees’ contribution for the nominal value of
share in respect to option granted to employees
of subsidiary company is being reimbursed by
subsidiary companies to holding company.

		

(c) Entitlement of option rises proportionately with
the issuance of bonus. Nominal value of shares
against enhanced options is financed by the
company at the point of exercise of such option
by employees against utilization of general
reserve/security premium.

2.15 Mergers/Amalgamation
		
Merger / Amalgamation (of the nature of merger)
of other company / body corporate with the
company are accounted for on the basis of purchase
method, the assets / liabilities being incorporated
in terms of values of assets and liabilities appearing
in the books of transferor entity on the date of
such merger / amalgamation for the purpose of
arriving at the figure of goodwill or amalgamation
reserve.
2.16 Segment Reporting
		 The Company identifies primary segments based
on the pre-dominant sources of risk effects and
returns depending on organization and of the
management and internal financial reporting
system. The operating segments are the segments
for which separate financial information are
available and operating profit/loss there from

are evaluated regularly by the management
for allocation of resources and assessment of
performance.
		

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate
to the company as a whole which are not allocable
to segments on direct and/or reasonable basis
have been included under “unallocated revenue/
expenses/assets/liabilities”.

2.17 Earnings per Share
		
Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the net profit for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.
		

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings
per share, the net profit for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period
is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

2.18 Miscellaneous Expenditure
		 (a) Deferred Employees Compensation under ESOP
is amortized on straight line basis over vesting
period.
		

(b) Share issue expenses and research fee paid in
connection with technical collaborations are
charged to revenue in the year of occurrence.

13. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

1

a) Aggregate cost of quoted investment
b) Aggregate market value of quoted investment
c) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
2 Provision for diminution in carrying amount of non-current-investment
(forming part of long term provision)
3 Investment in H & B stores Ltd (wholly owned domestic subsidiary) made
during the year for ` 3430 (previous year nil) relates to conversion of loan into
equity at par without consideration amount being paid in cash.

As at
March 31, 2013
8,714
9,163
14,332

As at
March 31, 2012
8,714
8,792
7,154

27

27

19,742
20,343
29,101

12,165
15,730
23,594

31,798
103
39
31,940

26,098
2
29
26,129

16. CURRENT INVESTMENTS
a) Aggregate cost of quoted investment
b) Aggregate market value of quoted investment
c) Aggregate amount of unquoted investment
19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with banks (Net of FDR's maturing after 12 months)
Cheques / drafts in hand
Cash-in-Hand
Total
22. TOTAL CONTINGENT LAIBILITIES
23. TOTAL CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

10,130

10,204

1,61,777

1,23,968
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24. INFORMATION PURSUANT TO AS-29
Brief Particulars of provision on disputed liabilities:
Nature of
Liability

Particulars of dispute

Sales Tax Classification of Laldant Manjan
Entry Tax Entry tax on car
Sales Tax Classification of Hajmola Candy
Sales Tax Tax Paid purchase
Sales Tax Taxability dispute on turnover (First
point taxability issue)
Sales Tax Short payment/ interest on Sales
Tax-BHPL
Excise
Hajmola Candy classification matter
Excise
Capital Goods removal

Opening Provision
Provision
Closing
Forum where the dispute
Liability made during adjusted during Provision
is pending
the year
the year
36
0
0
36 Filed review application with
High Court
1
0
0
1
28
0
0
28 Appeal pending before S T
Appellate
29
0
0
29 Pending before High Court
0
48
0
48 Appeal pending before
Appellate Comm.
0
6
0
6 Appeal pending before DC
Appeal
109
0
0
109 Tribunal
30
0
0
30 DC appeal
233
54
0
287

i)

Resulting outflows against above liabilities, pending before Sales Tax DC/Tribunal/CCT’s, if mature, are expected to be in
succeeding financial year.
ii)
Provisions are made herein for medium risk oriented issues as a measure of abundant precaution.
iii) Company presumes remote risk possibility of further cash outflow pertaining to contingent liabilities and commitments
listed in point 22 & 23 above.
37. EXTRA ORDINARY ITEM
During the current year extraordinary item is Nil. Same for the previous year was ` 4489 relating to investment in H & B stores
limited a wholly owned subsidiary written off on account of Hon’ble High Court Delhi approving investee’s application for
reduction for share capital against cancellation of 448938127 number of equity shares of ` 1 each not being represented by
tangible/ intangible assets.
47. DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS (AS-15)
Particulars
A.

B.

22

Gratuity Leave Salary
(funded)
(funded)
Defined Benefit Plan. Expenses recognized during the period:
CY
–
–
A. Past Service Cost
PY
–
–
B. Current Service Cost
CY
321
204
PY
280
181
C. Interest Cost
CY
236
80
PY
236
81
D. Expected return on Plan Assets
CY
(230)
(79)
PY
(168)
(68)
E. Accumulated Loss/(Gain)
CY
117
60
PY
(296)
(107)
Total expenses recognized during the year
CY
444
265
F.
(A+B+C+D+E)
PY
52
87
Reconciliation of opening & closing balances of obligations :
I.
Obligation as on 01.04.2012
CY
2952
PY
2776
II. Past service cost
CY
0
PY
0
III. Current service cost
CY
322
PY
280
IV. Interest cost
CY
236
PY
235
V. Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss
CY
184
PY
(189)
VI. Settlement
CY
(197)
PY
(150)
VII. Obligation as on 31.03.2013
CY
3497
PY
2952

995
957
0
0
204
181
80
82
74
(48)
(224)
(176)
1129
996

Post Separation
benefits of director

Total

–
–
116
120
324
351
0
0
(353)
(298)
87
173

–
–
641
581
640
668
(309)
(236)
(175)
(701)
796
312

4050
4133
0
0
117
120
324
351
(353)
(298)
(174)
(257)
3964
4050

7998
7866
0
0
643
580
639
668
(94)
(535)
(595)
(583)
8590
7998
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C.

D.

Change in Plan Assets :
(Reconciliation of opening and closing balances)
I.
Fair Value of Plan Assets as on 01.04.2012
II.

Expected Return on Plan Assets

III.

Actuarial Gain/ (Loss)

IV.

Employer Contribution

V.

Settlement

VI.

Fair value of Plan Assets as on 31.03.2013

2481
1870
230
168
67
108
785
485
(197)
(150)
3366
2481

859
758
79
68
14
59
625
150
(224)
(176)
1353
859

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

3340
2628
309
236
81
167
1410
635
(421)
(326)
4719
3340

CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY

3497
(2952)
3366
(2481)
131
(471)

1129
(996)
1353
(859)
(224)
(137)

3963
(4049)
0
0
3963
(4050)

8589
(7997)
4719
(3340)
3870
(4658)

Closing Obligation vis-a-vis Planned Assets :
I.

Obligation as on 31.03.2013

II.

Fair value of planned assets as on 31.03.2013

E.

Investment detail of plan assets as on 31.03.2013:

F.

Actuarial Assumption
i)
Financial assumption:
Discount rate (%)
Estimated rate of return on plan assets (%)
Salary escalation rate (%)
ii)
Method of computation
iii) Demographic assumption: Life expectancy

G.
H.

CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY

100% reimbursement right from Insurance Company for fund
managed by it

7.5 to 8.5
9 to 9.25
10
Project unit credit method
IALM ( 1994-96)

J.
K.

The basis used for determination of expected rate of return is average return on long term investment in Government bonds.
The estimate of future salary increase take into account regular increment, promotional increases and Inflationary
consequence over price index.
Demographics assumptions take into account mortality factor as per LIC (1994-96) ultimate criteria, Employees and
normal retirement age at 58.
Particulars on planned assets have been ascertained on the basis of last confirmation from Insurance Company.
CY – Current Year, PY – Previous Year.

L.

Defined Contribution Plan:

I.

		

Company’s contribution to different defined contribution plans
Particulars
Provident Fund
Employees State Insurance
Employees Superannuation Fund

2012-13
946
165
403
1,514

2011-12
854
129
357
1,340

49. INFORMATION PURSUANT TO AS-19 ISSUED BY ICAI RELATING TO OPERATING LEASE (AS LESSOR)
The future minimum lease payment under
non-cancelable operating lease

i)

ii)
iii)
iv)

Not Later than
1 year

Later than 1 year but not
later than 5 year

Later than
5 year

Building & Machine

87
(38)

272
(13)

0
0

Cars

88
(57)

124
(78)

0
0

Lease rent debited to Profit & Loss account of the year ` 95 (Previous year ` 67)
Irrevocable lease agreement relates to flat, machine & vehicle, lease period not exceeding five years in respect of any arrangement
Figures in bracket relates to previous year
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50. AS 30, 31 & 32
(a) Considering mandatory status of AS-30 as conferred by ICAI, continuing up-to the point of approval of accounts of
previous year, company adopted relevant standard in said year. Notwithstanding subsequent modification of mandatory
status on AS-30 by ICAI, the company continues to follow AS-30 for treatment of financial instruments, financial assets
& liabilities as relevant standard, has been recommended for adoption by ICAI and is akin to International Accounting
Standard with ability to express the affairs of its jurisdiction in relatively realistic perspective of true and fairness of
accounts.
(b) Financial assets/liabilities available for sale are of the nature of loans, receivables and payables, (not being receivable/
payable in short term context), call for measurements at amortized value unless amortized value does not materially
differ from unamortized value or assets /liabilities are held at floating rate of interest.
(c) Effective rate of interest applicable for arriving at discounted value of relevant liabilities & assets as on date, hereby
described as amortized value, has been considered on the basis of appropriate Government Bond rate ruling as on
31-03-2013 which is 7.95 % as against 8.4% ruling as on 31-03-2012. Such benchmarking of effective rate is attributed
to expected cognizance taken by government of the market risk, commodity price index, foreign exchange reserve,
inflationary & deflationary impact on internal rates & cyclic / non cyclic fluctuations in fiscal & monetary system for the
purpose of arriving at the rate of bond.
(d) Particulars on financial assets/liabilities where fair value/amortized cost differ from book balance:
Particulars

Holding Fair Profit/ Head of account Profit/
Price Value (Loss) (Loss)being accounted for

A.      FINANCIAL ASSETS
a.       Held for Trading
Mutual Funds

as on 31.03.2013
as on 31.03.2012

b. Available for Sale
Government Bond

B.      FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a. Instrument hedging adverse currency
fluctuation against Off Balance
Exposure in Foreign Currency
b. Instrument hedging adverse currency
fluctuation against borrowing in
foreign currency

19742 20342
12165 12231

600
Other Income
65 Opening General Reserve

as on 31.03.2013

8714

9163

449

as on 31.03.2012

8714

8792

78

Investment Revaluation
Reserve
-do-

as on 31.03.2013

0

0

0

Finance Cost

as on 31.03.2012
as on 31.03.2013

–
0

10
(56)

10
(56)

Finance Cost
Finance Cost

as on 31.03.2012

–

(63)

(63)

Finance Cost

C. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Particulars

Long term Borrowing as on 31.03.2013
as on 31.03.2012

Original
Amount
162
212

Discounted Re-instated Profit/
Head of account Profit/
Value
Discounted (Loss) (Loss) being accounted for
Value
114
164

130
0

-16
48

Finance Cost
Opening General reserve

Unrealized hedging loss forming part of financial assets of ` 56 (` 53) against off balance sheet exposure appears in the
current liabilities in the balance sheet.
(f ) Value of equity instruments, financial assets not carried at fair value except for those having negligible impact or bearing
floating rate of interest.
		 ` 107 (` 107) towards noncurrent investment
		 ` 18401 (` 3000) of term deposit with bank maturing little after one year
(g) All financial assets and financial liabilities, not being referred to in above table, being short term in nature and not
tradable in primary or secondary market, have been carried at unamortized cost.
(h) The company has no exposure involving credit risk included in loan or receivable.
(i)
` 8 (` 8) of fixed deposits are pledged with government authorities towards excise bond.
(e)
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(j)

Outstanding overseas exposure hedged by forward option/ contract against adverse currency fluctuation:Foreign Currency
Local Currency
Nature of risk hedged
i) Packing Credit Loan
CY
USD
310 INR
16,741
Adverse currency
PY
USD
203 INR
10,265
Fluctuations
Off balance sheet exposure towards
CY
USD
0 INR
0
Adverse currency
ii)
sale instrument of foreign exchange
PY
USD
33 INR
1,664
Fluctuations
(k) Outstanding overseas exposure not being hedged against adverse currency fluctuation
i) Export Receivable
CY
EUR
3 INR
175
PY
EUR
2 INR
132
CY
GBP
0 INR
38
PY
GBP
1 INR
34
CY
USD
40 INR
2185
PY
USD
74 INR
3603
ii) Overseas Creditors
CY
AED
23 INR
339
PY
AED
23 INR
291
CY
AUD
1 INR
80
PY
AUD
1 INR
18
CY
EUR
0 INR
21
PY
EUR
2 INR
165
CY
GBP
0 INR
14
PY
GBP
0 INR
1
iii) Foreign Currency Loan
CY
JPY
0 INR
0
PY
JPY
433 INR
269
51. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE INFORMATION (PURSUANT TO AS-27)
(a) The company is a party to joint venture agreement controlling the management of Forum 1 Aviation Limited, a domestic
jointly controlled corporate entity (JCE) with part of its operation akin to jointly controlled operation, the main object
of the JCE being maintenance of aircraft for use of venturers or otherwise. The contributions of venturers are towards
capital build up of the JCE and periodic contribution towards cost of maintenance of air craft. Variable component of cost
of maintenance is borne by user of the aircraft in proportion to their actual usage and fixed component is shared by all the
venturers in proportion to their capital contribution. The participation of the venturers in the affairs of the management of
the JCE is through representation in the composition of Board of Directors as agreed in share holder’s agreement.
(b) Share of the company in assets, outside liability, net worth, income and expenses not being accounted for herein works
out to ` 952 (Previous year ` 1011), ` 347 (Previous year ` 441), ` 605 (Previous year ` 114), ` 526 (Previous year ` 396) and
` 442 (Previous year ` 362) respectively in respect of year under audit as per un-audited accounts of the JCE.
(c) Stake of the company in terms of percentage of total subscribed and paid up capital of JCE is 14.28%. Said amount
` 456 (` 456) appears under investment head in balance sheet of the company.
(d) Company’s commitment towards revenue expenditure of the JCE amounting to ` 542 (Previous year ` 439) has been
charged to profit and loss account under the head general charges.
(e) The company has furnished guarantee bond for ` 714 (previous year ` 714) in respect of borrowing availed by the JCE
for acquisition of aircraft which forms part of point 23 of these notes.
(f ) No income from said investment, unless realized in cash, is recognized in this stand alone account.
52. A.
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
		 Related party disclosures as required under AS-18:
		
(a) Related parties where control exists:
H & B Stores Limited
Dermoviva Skin Essentials Inc.
Asian Consumer Care Pvt. Ltd., Dhaka
Dabur Nepal Pvt. Ltd., Nepal
Dabur Egypt Ltd., Egypt
Dabur (UK) Ltd., UK
Dabur International Ltd., UAE
Weikfield International (UAE) LLC
African Consumer care Limited, Nigeria
Asian Consumer care Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd., Pakistan
Naturelle LLC, UAE
Dabur Egypt Trading Ltd., Egypt
Hobi Kozmetik
Ra Pazarlama
Namaste Laboratories LLC, US
Hair Rejuvenation & Revitalization Nigeria Ltd.
Healing Hair Lab International LLC, USA
Urban Lab International LLC, USA
Dabur Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd, Sri Lanka
Namaste Cosmeticos Ltda

(Domestic Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
(Foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
(Foreign Subsidiary)
(Foreign Subsidiary)
(Foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
(Foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
(Foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
(Foreign Subsidiary)
(Foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
(Foreign Subsidiary)
(Foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
(Foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
(Foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
(Foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
(Foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
(Foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
(Foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
(Foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
(Foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
(Foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
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(b) Other related parties in transaction with the company:

			
			
			
B.

(I) Joint venture /Partnership : Forum 1 Aviation Limited 		
(II) Key management personnel : (Whole time Directors) 1. P D Narang 2. Sunil Duggal
(III) Entities over which Key Management Personnel are able to exercise significant influence: None

Related Party Transactions as on 31.03.2013		
Subsidiary
J V/

Key
Entity under
Management
significant
Partnership
Personnel
influence

(A) Profit & Loss A/c*
1. Purchase of Goods
2. Sale of Goods
3. Royalty Expense
4. General Expenses
5. Interest Received on Loan
6. Remuneration/Exg./Pension
7. Employee Stock Option Scheme
8. Interest Received on Sec. Deposit
(B) Balance Sheet*
9. Loan Given
10. Repayment of Loans given
11. Equity Contribution
12. Security Deposit
(C) Off Balance Sheet Item*
13. Guarantees & Collaterals

Total

- 31,133
(341) (30,047)
- 6,390
- (5,060)
11
(10)
542
(439)
(9)
- 1,109
- (1,018)
- 1,436
- (1,533)
3
(2)

Outstanding as
on 31.03.2013

31,133
(29,706)
6,390
(5,060)
11
(10)
(9)
349
(244)
-

542
(439)
3
(2)

1,109
(1,018)
1,088
(1,290)
-

(35)
705
(1,766)
22
(19)
52
(49)
-

900
(1,600)
3,430
3,430
(1,483)
-

-

-

-

900
(1,600)
3,430
3,430
(1,483)
-

120
(2,650)
10,555
(7,125)
38
(38)

37,288
(29,189)

-

-

- 37,288
- (29,189)

1,58,978
(1,21,690)

*Previous Balance as on 31.03.2012
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A. Item referred to in 1 above includes Purchases from Dabur Nepal Pvt. Ltd. `30,926 (` 29,451)
B. Item referred to in 2 above includes Sales to Dabur International Ltd, African Consumer Care Ltd. , Naturelle LLC, Asian
Consumer Care Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd., Asian consumer care Ltd. ` 935, ` 839, ` 2,222, ` 846, ` 667 respectively (` 774,
` 540, ` 1,448, ` 805, ` 583 respectively)
C. Items referred to in 3 above relates to royalty paid to Dermoviva Skin Essentials Inc ` 11 (` 10)
D. Items referred to in 4 above relates to joint venture expenses paid to Forum 1 Aviation Ltd. ` 542 (` 439)
E. Items referred to in 5 above includes Interest received on loan given to Dermoviva Skin Essentials Inc ` Nil (` 9)
F. Items referred to in 6 above relates to remuneration paid to Sunil Duggal & P.D.Narang ` 554 & ` 555 respectively
(` 507 & ` 508 respectively)
G. Items referred to in 8 above relates to interest paid on security deposit from Forum 1 Aviation Ltd. ` 305 (` 228)
H. Items referred to in 9 above relates to loan given to H&B stores Ltd ` 900 (` 1,600)
I. Items referred to in 10 above relates to loan repaid by H&B stores Ltd by converting it into equity at par
J. Item referred to in 11 above relates to equity issued by H&B stores Ltd by converting loan into equity ` 3,430 (` Nil)
K. Figures in bracket relate to Previous year.
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55. SEGMENT INFORMATION PURSUANT TO AS-17
Particulars

Current year ended
March 31, 2013

1. Segment Revenue
A. Consumer Care Business
B. Food Business
C. Other Segments
Net Sales/Income from Operations
2. Segment Results Profit / Loss(-) Before Tax and Interest
A. Consumer Care Business
B. Foods Business
C. Other Segments
Sub Total
Less : Interest & Financial Expenses
Less : Unallocable expenditure net off unallocable income
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax
Exceptional Item
Profit / (Loss) from Ordinary Activities before Tax
Less:- Tax Expenses
Profit / (Loss) after Tax
Extraordinary items
Net Profit / (Loss) for the period
3. Capital Employed(Segment Assets-Segment Liabilities)
A. Consumer Care Business
B. Foods Business
C. Other Segments
Unallocated capital employed
Total

Previous year ended
March 31, 2012

3,47,367
66,612
19,439
4,33,418

3,06,341
53,434
14,502
3,74,277

92,228
8,317
1,367
1,01,972
1,840
25,165
74,967
–
74,967
15,869
59,098
–
59,098

77,120
9,686
367
87,173
1,410
22,571
63,192
–
63,192
12,379
50,813
- 4,489
46,324

74,852
14,068
2,611
65,030
1,56,561

76,257
14,787
3,024
30,876
1,24,944

58. Amount due to Micro & Small enterprises under MSMED Act, 2006 is ` 475 (previous year ` 566). Identification of such enterprises
has been made on the basis of their disclosure in correspondences, bills to the effect as mandated for them. There was neither
any default nor any delay in payment made to such enterprises, credit terms where of were within period prescribed under
statue.
60. Exchange gain works out to ` 574 (Previous Year ` 2,275) and exchange loss ` 994 (Previous year ` 2345) and their net impact
have been debited to Profit & Loss Account under the head “Finance Cost”.
61. Assets written down/ discarded
					
Fixed Asset discarded

		

As per our report of even date attached

For DABUR INDIA LIMITED

for G.BASU & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 301174E

DR ANAND BURMAN
Chairman

ANIL KUMAR
SUNIL DUGGAL
Partner
Whole Time Director
Membership No. 9390		
Place : New Delhi
Date  : April 30, 2013

Current Year

Previous Year

34
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P D NARANG
Whole Time Director
A K JAIN
Senior G.M. (Finance)
Cum Company Secretary
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ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUDITORS’ REPORT

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR ON THE ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
To the Members of Dabur India Limited
The accompanying Abridged consolidated financial statements,
which comprise the abridged consolidated balance sheet as at
31st March 2013, the abridged consolidated statement of profit
& loss and abridged consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended and related notes, are derived from the audited
consolidated financial statements of Dabur India Limited group for
the year ended 31st March 2013. We expressed an unmodified
audit opinion on those financial statement in our report dated
30th April 2013. Those consolidated financial statements, and the
abridged consolidated financial statements, do not reflect the effects
of events that occurred subsequent to the date of our report on those
financial statements.
The Abridged financial statements do not contain all the disclosures
required by the Accounting Standards [applied in the preparation of
the audited consolidated financial statements of Dabur India Limited].
Reading the abridged consolidated financial statements, therefore,
is not a substitute for reading the audited consolidated financial
statements of Dabur India Limited group.
Also consolidated herein on proportionate basis in applicable of AS27 are the unaudited accounts of Forum I Aviation Limited, a domestic
jointly controlled corporate entity, the parent company being one of the
joint ventures therein. Proportionate total net assets, profit and net cash
flow amounting to ` 606 Lacs, ` 85 Lacs and ` 15 Lacs respectively of
the jointly controlled corporate entity have been consolidated with this
financial statement on the basis of accounts of said entity as certified by
its management which has not been audited by us.

Management’s
Statements

Responsibility

for

the

Abridged

Financial

Management is responsible for the preparation of a Abridged of the
audited consolidated financial statements in accordance with AS-21 on
consolidated statement of accounts mandated by ASB read with AS27 mandated by ASB on accounting of joint venture and accounting
principles generally accepted in India.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Abridged consolidated
financial statements based on our procedures, which were conducted in
accordance with Standard on Auditing (SA) 810, “Engagements to Report
on Summary Financial Statements” issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Abridged consolidated financial statements derived
from the audited consolidated financial statements of Dabur India
Limited group for the year ended 31st March 2013 are a fair summary of
those financial statements, in accordance with applicable Accounting
Standards and accounting principles generally accepted in India.
For G.Basu & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 301174E
Place : New Delhi
Date : April 30, 2013

Anil Kumar
Partner
Membership number: 9390

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
To the Board of Directors of Dabur India Limited
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of
Dabur India Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries, which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March 2013, the consolidated
statement of profit and loss and consolidated cash flows statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Also consolidated herein on proportionate basis in applicable of
AS-27 are the unaudited accounts of Forum I Aviation Limited, a domestic
jointly controlled corporate entity, the parent company being one of the
joint ventures therein. Proportionate total net assets, profit and net cash
flow amounting to ` 606 Lacs, ` 85 Lacs and ` 15 Lacs respectively of
the jointly controlled corporate entity have been consolidated with this
financial statement on the basis of accounts of said entity as certified by
its management which has not been audited by us.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Company’s preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
28

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India:
(a) In the case of the consolidated balance sheet, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31st March, 2013;
(b) In the case of the consolidated statement of profit and loss
account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
(c) In the case of the consolidated cash flow statement, of the cash
flows for the year ended on that date.
For G.Basu & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 301174E
Place : New Delhi
Date : April 30, 2013

Anil Kumar
Partner
Membership number : 9390

Dabur India Limited

DABUR Abridged 050613.indd 28

6/5/2013 5:55:58 PM

ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT MARCH 31, 2013

9 10 11 12 13 14
(All amounts in ` Lacs, except share data)

Sl. No. Particulars
I
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Share holders' Funds
(a) Paid up Share Capital
i) Equity
(b) Reserves and Surplus
(i) Capital Reserves
(ii) Revenue Reserves
(iii) Surplus
2 Minority Interest
3 Non-current Liabilities
(a) Long Term borrowings
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
(c) Other Long-term liabilities
(d) Long-term provisions
4 Current Liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings
(b) Trade payables
(c) Other current liabilities
(d) Short-term provisions
Total
II
ASSETS
5 Non-current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible assets
(ii) Intangible assets
(iii) Capital work-in-progress
(b) Non-current investments
(c) Long-term loans and advances
(d) Other non-current assets
6 Current Assets
(a) Current investments
(b) Inventories
(c) Trade receivables
(d) Cash and cash equivalents
(e) Short-term loans and advances
(f ) Other current assets
Total

As at
March 31, 2013

As at
March 31, 2012

17,429

17,421

6,315
10,877
1,77,817
1,206

10,008
6,390
1,37,899
303

53,993
3,621
12
4,919

72,718
2,740
0
20,566

61,142
74,430
43,196
18,684
4,73,641

34,091
47,681
50,840
19,376
4,20,033

94,568
63,620
9,257
13,047
1,577
31,268

84,225
79,898
2,676
8,928
2,584
10,192

50,141
84,386
48,413
51,281
20,150
5,933
4,73,641

39,324
82,392
46,168
41,842
18,583
3,221
4,20,033

Note: Complete Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, other statements and notes thereto prepared as per the requirement
of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 are available at the Company’s website www.dabur.com at link http://www.dabur.
com/Annual-Reports-2012-13
As per our report of even date attached

For DABUR INDIA LIMITED

for G.BASU & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 301174E

DR ANAND BURMAN
Chairman

ANIL KUMAR
SUNIL DUGGAL
Partner
Whole Time Director
Membership No. 9390		
Place : New Delhi
Date  : April 30, 2013

P D NARANG
Whole Time Director
A K JAIN
Senior G.M. (Finance)
Cum Company Secretary
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for the year ended on March 31, 2013

11

ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2013
(All amounts in ` Lacs, except share data)

Sl. No. Particulars
I
Income
Revenue from operations *
Less: Excise duty
Net Revenue from Operations
II
Other Income
III
Total Income (I +II)
IV
Expenditure
(a) Cost of materials consumed
(b) Purchase of stock in trade
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and
stock-in-trade
(d) Employee benefits expenses
(e) Finance costs
(f ) Depreciation and Amortisation expenses
(g) Other Expenses
Total Expenditure ( a to g)
V
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (III - IV)
VI
Exceptional Items
VII Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI)
VIII Extraordinary Items
IX
Profit before tax (VII - VIII)
X
1. Tax expense
2. Deferred Tax
XI
Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year from continuing operations (IX - X)
XII
Minority Interest
XIII Profit after Minority Interest
XIV Earnings per equity share (before extraordinary items)
(a) Basic
(b) Diluted
XV
Earnings per equity share (after extraordinary items)
(a) Basic
(b) Diluted

For the
year ended
March 31, 2013

For the
year ended
March 31, 2012

6,22,950
(5,338)
6,17,612
9,450
6,27,062

5,34,707
(4,165)
5,30,542
5,740
5,36,282

2,42,211
59,922

2,27,880
51,665

(199)

(10,305)

47,123
5,890
11,240
1,65,575
5,31,762
95,300
466
94,834
8
94,842
17,382
881
76,579
237
76,342

38,742
5,384
10,324
1,33,543
4,57,233
79,049
79,049
79,049
13,829
809
64,411
(78)
64,489

4.38
4.35

3.70
3.68

4.38
4.35

3.70
3.68

4,83,536
1,36,440
30
2,944
6,22,950

4,24,937
1,07,545
41
2,184
5,34,707

* Details of Revenue from operations:
I
II
III
IV

Sale of products manufactured
Sale of goods traded
Revenue from services provided
Other operational Revenue
Total

As per our report of even date attached

For DABUR INDIA LIMITED

for G.BASU & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 301174E

DR ANAND BURMAN
Chairman

ANIL KUMAR
SUNIL DUGGAL
Partner
Whole Time Director
Membership No. 9390		
Place : New Delhi
Date  : April 30, 2013
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P D NARANG
Whole Time Director
A K JAIN
Senior G.M. (Finance)
Cum Company Secretary

Dabur India Limited

DABUR Abridged 050613.indd 30

6/5/2013 5:55:58 PM

ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2013

9 10 11 12 13 14
(All amounts in ` Lacs, except share data)

Sl. No.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

For the
year ended
March 31, 2013
86,954
(54,114)
(23,401)
9,439
41,842
51,281

Particulars
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

As per our report of even date attached

For DABUR INDIA LIMITED

for G.BASU & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 301174E

DR ANAND BURMAN
Chairman

ANIL KUMAR
SUNIL DUGGAL
Partner
Whole Time Director
Membership No. 9390		
Place : New Delhi
Date  : April 30, 2013

For the
year ended
March 31, 2012
59,693
(26,050)
(19,846)
13,797
28,045
41,842

P D NARANG
Whole Time Director
A K JAIN
Senior G.M. (Finance)
Cum Company Secretary

NOTES TO THE ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AND THE ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
(All amounts in ` Lacs, except share data)
2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1
		

		

Basis for preparation of accounts
The accounts have been prepared in accordance
with the historical cost convention (except for
specifically excluded treatment of accounts referred
to in Note No. 46) under accrual basis of accounting
as per Indian GAAP. Accounts and Disclosures
thereon comply with the Accounting Standards
specified in Companies (Accounting Standard)
Rules, other pronouncement of ICAI, provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956 and guidelines issued by
SEBI as applicable.
Indian GAAP enjoins management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect reported
amount of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and
contingent liabilities pertaining to years, the financial
statement relate to. Actual result could differ from
such estimates. Any revision in accounting estimates
is recognized prospectively from current year and
material revision, including its impact on financial
statement, is reported in notes to accounts in the
year of incorporation of revision.

		

All assets and liabilities have been classified as
current or non-current as per the company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Revised
Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956.

2.2
		

Principles of consolidation
i) Consolidated herein are the accounts of:-

			w Dabur India Limited (the parent company)

			w H & B Stores Limited (a wholly owned
subsidiary company incorporated in India)
			w Dabur International Ltd., (a wholly owned
subsidiary body corporate incorporated in
Isle of MAN)
			w Dabur (UK) Ltd. (a wholly owned subsidiary
body corporate incorporated in British
Virgin Island, 100% stake wherein is held by
Dabur International Ltd.)
			w Dabur Nepal Pvt. Ltd. (a subsidiary body
corporate incorporated in Nepal, 97.5%
stake wherein is held by Dabur International
Ltd.)
			w Dabur Egypt Ltd. (a wholly owned subsidiary
body corporate incorporated in Egypt, 76%
& 24% of stake wherein are held by Dabur
(UK) Ltd. and Dabur International Ltd.
respectively)
			w Asian Consumer care Pvt. Ltd. (a subsidiary
body corporate incorporated in Bangladesh,
76% stake wherein is held by Dabur
International Ltd.)
			w African Consumer Care Ltd. (a wholly owned
subsidiary body corporate incorporated in
Nigeria, 90% stake wherein is held by Dabur
International Ltd & 10% stake held by Dabur
(UK) Ltd.)
			w Asian Consumer Care Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd. (a
subsidiary body corporate incorporated in
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NOTES TO THE ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AND THE ABRIDGED
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Pakistan, 99.99% stake where in is held by
Dabur International Ltd.)

			w Naturelle LLC (a subsidiary body corporate
incorporated in Emirate of RAS AI Khaimah,
100% stake wherein is held by Dabur
International Ltd.)

by adding together the book values of
like items of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group
balances and intra-group transactions and
resulting in unrealized profits or losses.
			

			w Dabur Egypt Trading Ltd. (a wholly owned
subsidiary body corporate, incorporated in
Egypt, 99% & 1% of stake wherein are held
by Dabur International Ltd. and Dabur Egypt
Ltd. respectively)
			w Dermoviva Skin Essentials INC (a wholly
owned
subsidiary
body
corporate
incorporated in USA, 97.79% and 2.21%
stakes wherein are held by Dabur
International Ltd. & Dabur India Ltd.,
respectively
			w Namaste Laboratories LLC (a wholly owned
subsidiary body corporate, incorporated
in USA, 100% right wherein is exercised by
Dermoviva Skin Essentials INC)

			 (c)		
Investments of parent company in
subsidiaries
are
eliminated
against
respective proportionate stake of parent
company therein on the respective dates
when such investments were made by way
of debiting/crediting the difference of the
two in goodwill/ capital reserve.
			

			w Urban laboratories International LLC (a
wholly owned subsidiary body corporate
incorporated in USA, 100% right wherein is
exercised by Namaste Laboratories LLC)
			w Healing Hair Laboratories International
LLC (a wholly owned body corporate
incorporated in USA, 100% rights wherein is
exercised by Namaste Laboratories LLC)
			w Namaste cosmeticos Ltda. (a wholly owned
body corporate incorporated in Brazil, 100%
rights wherein is exercised by Namaste
Laboratories LLC)
			w Two wholly owned overseas subsidiary body
corporate incorporated in Turkey named
Hobi Kozmetik and RA Pazarlama, 100%
stake in each is held by Dabur International
Ltd.

ii)

		

iii) The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the basis of AS-21, under
pooling of interest method read with the
following basic assumptions:

			

32

In addition to the above, proportionately
consolidated herein is the accounts of Forum 1
Aviation Ltd. (a domestic corporate entity jointly
controlled by parent company with others,
stake of parent company being 14.28% therein)
on the basis of un-audited results.

(a) The financial statements of the parent
company and its subsidiary companies
have been combined on a line-by-line basis

(d)		In respect of foreign subsidiaries, rise in
the value of stake of parent company in
terms of reporting currency upto the date
of commercial production (i.e. the date,
their assets were due for capitalization) on
account of exchange fluctuation has been
credited to capital reserve. Subsequent
generation of reserve other than that of the
nature of capital reserve including gain/
loss arising on account of translating the
transactions of the year, year-end assets
and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries for
the purpose of consolidating with parent
company’s assets at exchange rates ruling
on year-end-date has been recognized
as reserve specifically earmarked for the
purpose.

		

iv) The consolidated financial statements are
prepared by adopting uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events
in similar circumstances and are presented to
the extent possible, in the same manner as the
parent company’s separate financial statements
unless stated otherwise.

		

v)

			w Dabur Lanka Pvt. Ltd. (a wholly owned
subsidiary body corporate incorporated
in Sri Lanka 100% stake wherein is held by
Dabur International Ltd.)
		

(b)		Entities joining business combination during
the year / earlier years were accounted for
at immediate post merger /amalgamation
/ acquisition point in terms of note no. 2.6
which provides their initial basis of worth of
assets , liabilities & reserves for consolidation.
Subsequent accountal thereon remain on
line to line basis.

Minority interest, where lying, in the net income
of consolidated subsidiaries have been adjusted
against the income of the group so as to arrive
at net income attributable to the parent
company only. Minority interest, consisting of
equity attributable to them on the date such
investments were made by the parent company
and movement in their equity since the date of
parent subsidiary relationship, along with other
segments of reserve attributable to minorities
has been disclosed in the consolidated financial
statement separately from liability and equity of
shareholders of parent company.
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9 10 11 12 13 14
2.3
		

2.4
		
		

		

		

2.5
		
		

		

		

Translation of overseas subsidiaries from foreign
currencies to reporting currency
All assets/ outside liabilities and income/ expenses
of overseas subsidiaries have been translated in
reporting currency in terms of exchange rates
prevailing on year-end date and average monthly
rate respectively on the basis of non-integral
operational approach under revised AS-11 there by
accounting for aggregate of net impact in exchange
fluctuation in these regards as exchange reserve
shown under broad head of “Reserve and Surplus”.
Recognition of Income and Expenses
(a) Sales and purchases are accounted for on the
basis of passing of title to the goods.
(b) Sales comprise of sale price of goods including
excise duty but exclude trade discount and
Sales tax/Vat.
(c) Income/ loss from future trading of commodities,
forming part of inputs, is to be recognized at
the closing point of the contract. For option
contracts, loss if any occurs on balance sheet
date is recognized. However profit, if any,
accruing on open contracts on balance sheet
date is ignored.
(d) All the other incomes have been accounted
for on accrual basis except for those income
stipulated for recognition on realization basis
on the ground of uncertainty under AS-9 or
income or expenses referred to in appropriate
paragraphs of Note no. 2.7
Fixed Assets
(a) Fixed assets are stated at carrying amount i.e.
cost less accumulated depreciation.
(b) Cost includes freight, duties, taxes and other
expenses incidental to acquisition and
installation.
(c) Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been provided
on straight line method at rates specified in
Schedule XIV of the Companies Act and as per
the useful lives of the assets estimated by the
management when useful life of the assets
is deemed less except for part of 5/1 Unit
Sahibabad, Alwar unit and Narenderpur unit
and for Motor Vehicles where depreciation
has been provided for on written down value
methods at the rates specified in the aforesaid
Schedule.
(d) Fixed Assets purchased for less than ` 0.05 have
been depreciated at the rate of 100%.

		

(e) Patents and trademarks are being amortized
over the period of ten years on straight line
basis.

		

(f ) Softwares are being amortized over the period
of five years on straight line basis.

		

(g) For New Projects, all direct expenses and direct
overheads (excluding services provided by

employees in company’s regular payroll) are
capitalized.
		

(h) Capital Subsidy received against fixed capital
outlay is deducted from gross value of individual
fixed assets, forming part of subsidy scheme
granted, by way of proportionate allocation
of subsidy amount thereon. Depreciation is
charged on net fixed assets after deduction of
subsidy amount.

		

(i) During sale of fixed assets, any profit earned
towards excess of sale value over gross block of
assets (i.e. balancing charge) is transferred from
profit & loss account to capital reserve.

2.6
		

Impairment/discarding of Assets
(a) The company identifies impairable fixed assets
based on cash generating unit concept for
tangible fixed assets and asset specific concept
for intangible fixed assets at the year-end in
term of clause 5 to 13 of AS –28 and clause
83 of AS- 26 respectively for the purpose of
arriving at impairment loss thereon, if any, being
the difference between the book value and
recoverable value of relevant assets. Impairment
loss, when crystallizes, is charged against
revenue of the year.

		 (b) Apart from test of impairment within the
meaning of AS-28, individual tangible fixed
assets of various CGU’s are identified for
writing down on the ground of obsolescence,
damage, redundancy & un-usability at the
year end.
		

(c) Further the company has assessed recoverable
value of each cash generating units (CGUs) and
each intangible asset based on value-in-use
method. Such assessment indicated the value
in use of corresponding assets higher than
corresponding carrying cost of assets thereby
ruling out the cause of further arriving at their
net-selling-price and exigency of provision
against impairment loss.

		

(d) CGUs include Narenderpur plant, Sahibabad
plant, each of plants situated at Nashik, Baddi,
Jammu, Rudrapur, Silvasa, Pitampur, Kanpur,
Alwar, Newai and Jalpaiguri.

		

(e) Annual discount rate considered for arriving at
value-in-use of assets of each CGU is 7.50% i.e.
the average interest rate of external borrowing
plus risk factor @ 2.00 % per annum.

2.7
		

Financial Assets & Liabilities
(a) Financial assets held for trading

			

These assets relate to equity instruments,
mutual funds held for short term which is
carried at fair value. The difference of cost and
fair value is accounted for as loss or income, as
the case may be, in profit & loss account.
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(b) Financial assets available for sale

			

These relate to non-current investments e.g. Equity
Instruments/ Government Securities held for long
term which is carried at fair value. The difference
between cost and fair value is accounted for in
investment revaluation reserve forming part of
equity.

		 (c) Other
financial
assets/liabilities–Loans,
Receivables, Payables
			

These include all remaining items of assets
and liabilities, (excluding equity, fixed (tangible
& intangible) assets inventories and specific
exemptions referred to in note 4(g) to follow),
being carried at amortized cost. The difference
between unamortized value and amortized
value is accounted for as a loss or income, as the
case may be, in profit & loss account.

			No amortization is made for financial assets/
liabilities bearing floating rate of interest or
where amortization has immaterial impact on
profitability in AS - 30.
		

(d) Financial Instruments

			

			

Research and Development Expenses
Contributions towards scientific research expenses
are charged to the Profit & Loss Account in the year
in which the contribution is made.

2.9
		

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net
realizable value. Basis of determination of cost
remains as follows:

		

(a) Raw material, Packing Material, Stores & Spares :
Moving weighted Average basis

		

(b) Work-in-progress : Cost of Input plus overhead
upto the stage of completion

		

(c) Finished Goods : Cost of input plus appropriate
overhead

2.10 Deferred Entitlement on Leave Travel Concession
		 In terms of opinion of the Expert Advisory
Committee of the ICAI, the Company has
provided liability accruing on account of deferred
entitlement towards Leave Travel Concession
in the year in which the employees concerned
render their services.

These relate to off-balance sheet exposure
towards foreign exchange of the nature of
currency fluctuation or forward contract, being
marked to market, entered into with the object of
hedging against adverse currency fluctuations
(not being for trading and speculation) in
respect of import/export commitments.

2.11 Retirement Benefits
		
Liabilities in respect of retirement benefits to
employees are provided for as follows:
			

i) Leave Salary of employees on the basis of
actuarial valuation as per AS-15 (revised).

Financial Instruments are held at fair value and
the profit or loss arising on year closing date
on account of difference between contract
rate and exchange rate (the latter being the fair
value) on open contracts relevant to maturity
date is recognized as profit or loss of the year
appearing under broad head of “Finance Cost”.

			

ii) Post separation benefits of directors, which
is of the nature of long term benefit, on the
Basis of actuarial valuation as per AS-15
(revised).

			

iii) Gratuity Liability on the basis of actuarial
valuation as per AS-15 (revised).

		 (e) Fair value of financial assets – held for trading is
determined on the basis of market quotation/
NAV issued by investees. In the absence of scope
of determination of fair value, same are held at
cost.
		 (f) Amortized cost is carried at by way of discounting
future cash inflow/outflow in respect of relevant
asset/liability as on reporting date against
application of effective rate of interest.
		 (g) Interest in subsidiaries/ associates joint venture,
employees related dues,obligation under financial
lease (in the capacity of lessee/ lessor) have been
left out of the purview of treatments referred
to herein for financial assets/liabilities because
of different accounting standards dealing with
them.
		 (h) No amortized value of fiscal provision or
advance tax has been considered because of
period of uncertainty of their adjustment.
34

2.8
		

		

(a) Defined Benefit Plans

		

(b) Defined Contribution Plans

			

i) Liability for superannuation fund on the
basis of the premium paid to insurance
company in respect of employees covered
under Superannuation Fund Policy.

			

ii) Provident fund & ESI on the basis of actual
liability accrued and paid to trust / authority.

2.12 Income Tax and Deferred Tax
		

The liability of company on account of income tax is
estimated considering the provisions of the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

		

Deferred tax is recognized, subject to the
consideration of prudence, on timing differences
being the difference between taxable income and
accounting income that originate in one year and
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent years.

2.13 Contingent Liabilities
		 Disputed liabilities and claims against the
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company including claims raised by fiscal
authorities (e.g. Sales Tax, Income Tax, Excise
etc.), pending in appeal/court for which no
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation or which are remotely poised for
crystallization are not provided for in accounts
but disclosed in notes to accounts.
		

		

ii) Acquisition

			

However, present obligation as a result of past
event with possibility of outflow of resources, when
reliably estimable, is recognized in accounts.

2.14 Foreign Currency Translation
		
(a) Transactions of parent and domestic subsidiaries
with overseas parties are recognized at currency
rate ruling on the date of transaction. Gain or loss
arising towards rise/fall of overseas currency vis
a vis reporting currency is accounted for in profit
and loss account.
		

liabilities appearing in transferor entity on the
date of such merger / amalgamation for the
purpose of arriving at the figure of goodwill or
amalgamation reserve.

(b) Impact of currency fluctuation on current
assets/ current or outside liabilities of individual
entities with reference to currency of reporting
in countries of their incorporation are charged
to revenue.

2.15 Employee Stock Option Purchase (ESOP)
		
Aggregate of quantum of option granted under the
scheme in monetary term (net of consideration of
issue to be paid in cash) in terms of intrinsic value
has been shown as Employees Stock Option Scheme
outstanding in Reserve and Surplus head of the
Balance Sheet with corresponding debit in deferred
Employee Compensation under ESOP appearing
as Miscellaneous Expenditure under broad head of
non-current assets as per guidelines to the effect
issued by SEBI.
		

(a) With the exercise of option and consequent
issue of equity share, corresponding ESOP
outstanding is transferred to share premium
account.

		

(b) Employees’ contribution for the nominal value of
share in respect to option granted to employees
of subsidiary company is being reimbursed by
subsidiary companies to holding company.

		 (c) Entitlement of option rises proportionately with
the issuance of bonus. Nominal value of shares
against enhanced options is financed by the
company at the point of exercise of such option
by employees against utilization of general
reserve/security premium.
2.16 Business combinations
		 i) Merger/Amalgamation
			

Merger / Amalgamation (of the nature of
merger) of other company / body corporate
with the group is accounted for on the basis
of purchase method, the assets / liabilities being
accounted for in terms of book values of assets,

Any new entity joining business combination
consequent upon acquisition of its shares/rights
by any of the entities in group is accounted for
under purchase method, assets and liabilities of
the new entrant been accounted for as per book
value of assets, liabilities appearing in books of
new entrant on the date of its take over for the
purpose of arising at the figure of goodwill/
capital reserve.

		 iii) During the course of merger/amalgamation/
acquisition under purchase method, excess/
shortfall of consideration money over vis-à-vis
net assets (gross assets less outside liabilities)
inherited under such deal is accounted for as
goodwill/amalgamation or capital reserve.
			

If balance sheet of transferor/acquired entity
has any compulsory/statutory reserve at
point of its transfer/acquisition, said reserves
are retained subsequently under the Reserve
& Surpluses against creation of new head
called “Amalgamation Adjustment Account”
accounted for under the head of Miscellaneous
Expenditure in assets side of the balance sheet.

2.17 Segment Reporting
		
The Company identifies primary segments based on
the pre-dominant sources of risk effects and returns
depending on organization and of the management
and internal financial reporting system. The
operating segments are the segments for which
separate financial information are available and
operating profit/loss there from are evaluated
regularly by the management for allocation of
resources and assessment of performance.
		

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate
to the company as a whole which are not allocable
to segments on direct and/or reasonable basis
have been included under “unallocated revenue/
expenses/assets/liabilities”.

2.18 Earnings per Share
		

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the net profit for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

		

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings
per share, the net profit for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period
is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.
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2.19 Miscellaneous Expenditure
		
(a) Deferred Employees Compensation under ESOP
is amortized on straight line basis over vesting
period.
		

(b) Share issue expenses and research fee paid in
connection with technical collaborations are
charged to revenue in the year of occurrence.

new entities are shown under this head as
“Amalgamation Adjustment Account” for the
purpose of their retention under “Reserves and
Surplus” head in liability side.
			

		 (c) Statutory/compulsory
reserves
inherited
from
merger/amalgamation/acquisition
of

Amalgamation Adjustment Account is reversed
only after withdrawal of relevant statutory/
compulsory reserve following expiry of
fulfillment of statutory period/objective or
cessation of statutory obligation.

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
As at
March 31, 2013
50,210

As at
March 31, 2012
41,122

Cheques / drafts in hand

104

358

Cash-in-Hand

967

362

51,281

41,842

16,925

14,039

8,693

9,334

Particulars
Balances with banks (Net of FDR’s maturing after 12 months)

Total
24. TOTAL CONTINGENT LAIBILITIES
25. TOTAL CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
26. INFORMATION PURSUANT TO AS-29
Brief particulars of provisions on disputed liabilities:
Nature of
Liability

Particulars of dispute

Opening Provision
Provision
Closing Forum where the dispute
Liability made during
adjusted
Provision
is pending
the year during the year
Sales Tax Classification of Laldant Manjan
36
0
0
36 Filed review application
with High Court
Entry Tax Entry tax on car
1
0
0
1 Appeal pending before D.C.
Sales Tax Classification of Hajmola Candy
28
0
0
28 Appeal pending before
S T Appellate
Sales Tax Tax Paid purchase
29
0
0
29 Pending before High Court
Sales Tax Taxability dispute on turnover
(First point taxablity issue)
Sales Tax Short payment / interest on
Sales Tax-BHPL
Excise
Hajmola Candy classification
matter
Excise
Capital Goods removal
General
Expense
Income
Tax
i)
ii)
iii)

36

Product claim lodged by third
party
EX promoter USA liability

0

48

0

48 Appeal pending before
appellate Comm.
6 Appeal pending before DC
Appeal
109 Tribunal

0

6

0

109

0

0

30

0

0

33

0

33

0

20

0

20

0

286

54

53

287

30 DC Appeal

Resulting outflows against above liabilities pending before Sales Tax DC/Tribunal/CCT’s, if mature, are expected to be in
succeeding financial year.
Provisions are made herein for medium risk oriented issues as a measure of abundant precaution.
Remote risk possibility of further cash outflow is presumed pertaining to contingent liabilities listed in point 24 & 25
above.
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38. EMPLOYEE RELATED DUES
Gratuity Leave Salary
Post Separation
(funded)
(funded)
benefits of director

Particulars
A.

B.

Defined Benefit Plan
Expenses recognized during the period:
A.

Past Service Cost

B.

Current Service Cost

C.

Interest Cost

D.

Expected return on Plan Assets

E.

Accumulated Loss/(Gain)

F.

Total expenses recognized during the year
(A+B+C+D+E)

D.

E.

–
–
504
397
278
282
(245)
(185)
414
(384)
951
110

–
–
423
385
117
115
(81)
(70)
165
(221)
625
209

–
–
116
120
324
351
–
–
(353)
(298)
87
173

–
–
1,043
902
719
748
(326)
(255)
227
(903)
1,663
492

Reconciliation of opening & closing balances of obligations :
I.

Obligation as on 01.04.2012

II.

Past service cost

III.

Current service cost

IV.

Interest cost

V.

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss

VI.

Settlement

VII. Obligation as on 31.03.2013
C.

CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY

Total

Change in Plan Assets :
(Reconciliation of opening and closing balances)
I.
Fair Value of Plan Assets as on 01.04.2012
II.

Expected Return on Plan Assets

III.

Actuarial Gain/ (Loss)

IV.

Employer Contribution

V.

Settlement

VI.

Fair value of Plan Assets as on 31.03.2013

CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY

3,484
3,334
–
–
507
397
278
282
474
(273)
(355)
(222)
4,387
3,518

1,467
1,360
–
–
178
385
117
115
179
(161)
(364)
(229)
1,577
1,470

4,050
4,133
–
–
462
120
324
351
(353)
(298)
(174)
(257)
4,309
4,049

9,000
8,827
–
–
1,147
902
719
748
301
(732)
(893)
(708)
10,274
9,037

CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY

2,682
2,042
245
185
60
111
901
511
(228)
(180)
3,660
2,669

878
775
81
70
14
60
625
150
(226)
(177)
1,372
878

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

3,560
2,817
326
255
74
170
1,526
661
(454)
(357)
5,032
3,547

CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY

4,387
3,518
3,660
2,669
727
849

1,578
1,470
1,372
878
206
592

4,309
4,049
–
–
4,309
4,049

10,274
9,037
5,032
3,547
5,242
5,490

Closing Obligation vis-a-vis Planned Assets
I.

Obligation as on 31.03.2013

II.

Fair value of planned assets as on 31.03.2013

Investment detail of plan assets as on 31.03.2013:

100% reimbursement right from Insurance Company for fund
managed by it
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Actuarial Assumption :
Financial assumption:
Discount rate (%)
7.5 to 8.5
Estimated rate of return on plan assets (%)
9 to 9.25
Salary escalation rate (%)
10
The basis used for determination of expected rate of return is average return on long term investment in Government bonds.
The estimate of future salary increase take into account regular increment, promotional increases and Inflationary
consequence over price index.
Demographics assumptions take into account mortality factor as per LIC (1994-96) ultimate criteria, employees and
normal retirement age at 58.
Particulars on planned assets have been ascertained on the basis of last confirmation from Insurance Company.
CY- Current year, PY - Previous year
Defined Contribution Plan
Company’s contribution to different defined contribution plans
Particulars
Provident Fund
Employees State Insurance
Employees Superannuation Fund
Payroll taxes
401K Match

2012-13
1,151
169
403
192
124
2,039

2011-12
1,045
134
357
24
120
1,680

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (PURSUANT TO AS-18)
(a) Related party where control exists: None
(b) Other related parties in transaction with the group:
		
(i) Joint Venture : Forum 1 Aviation Ltd.
		
(ii) Key management personnel (KMP)- (Whole time Directors) : 1. PD Narang 2. Sunil Duggal 3. Mohit Malhotra
4. Anoop Sharma 5. Mete Buyurgan 6. H.S. Bedi 7. R.S. Rana 8. Sikander Tiwana 9. Gary Gardner
		 (iii) Entity under significant influence (owned by a KMP): None		
(c) Related Party Transactions as on 31.03.2013		
J V/
Key
Relatives of Entity under Total Outstanding
Partnership Management
Key
Significant
as on
Personnel Management Influence
Period end
Personal
(A) Profit & Loss a/c*
1. Purchase of Goods
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
(341)
(341)
–
2. General Expenses
542
–
–
–
542
52
(439)
–
–
–
(439)
(49)
3. Interest Received on Security
3
–
–
–
3
–
(2)
–
–
–
(2)
–
4. Remuneration/Exg./Pension
–
1,616
–
– 1,616
–
–
(1,488)
–
– (1,488)
–
5. Employee Stock Option
–
1,088
–
– 1,088
1,088
Scheme
–
(1,290)
–
– (1,290)
(1,290)
6. Staff Welfare
–
–
2
–
2
–
–
–
(2)
–
(2)
–
(B) Balance Sheet*
7. Security Deposit
38
(38)
(C) Off Balance Sheet Item
8. Guarantees & Collaterals
714
(714)
*Previous Balance as on 31.03.2012
		
Notes: A. Item no. 2 refers to Joint Venture Expenses to JCE (Forum I Aviation Ltd.)
				 B. Item no. 3 refers to interest on security deposit given by Forum 1 Aviation Ltd.			
				 C. Item no. 4 refers to renumeration paid to key managerial personnel				
				 D. Item no. 6 refers to family pension paid to V.C. Burman
38
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41. INFORMATION (TO THE EXTENT APPLICABLE) PURSUANT TO AS-19 ISSUED BY ICAI
i)

ii)

The future minimum lease payment under
non-cancelable operating lease

Not Later than 1
Later than 1 year but
year
not later than 5 year
87
272
Building & Machine
(781)
(1942)
88
124
Cars
(57)
(78)
Lease rent debited to Profit & Loss account of the year ` 456 (Previous year ` 223)

Later than 5 year
0
(351)
0
0

iii)

Irrevocable lease agreement relates to flat, machine & vehicle, lease period not exceeding five years in respect of any
arrangement
iv) Figures in bracket relates to previous year
42. Exchange Gain works out to ` 3,433 (Previous Year ` 2,936) and exchange loss ` 5,136 (Previous year ` 4,777) which has been
debited to Profit & Loss Account.
43. Investment in Joint Venture
(a)

(b)
(c)

		

The parent company is a party to joint venture agreement controlling the management of Forum 1 Aviation Limited, a
domestic jointly controlled corporate entity (JCE) with part of its operation akin to jointly controlled operation, the main
object of the JCE being maintenance of aircraft for use of venturers or otherwise. The contributions of venturers are
towards capital build up of the JCE and periodic contribution towards cost of maintenance of air craft.Variable component
of cost of maintenance is borne by user of the aircraft in proportion to their actual usage and fixed component is shared
by all the venturers in proportion to their capital contribution. The participation of the venturers in the affairs of the
management of the JCE is through representation in the composition of Board of Directors as agreed in share holder’s
agreement. The stake of the company in the joint venture arrangement is 14.28%.
Parent company’s commitment towards revenue expenditure of the JCE amounting to `542 (Previous year ` 439) has
been charged to profit and loss account under the head general charges.
Incorporated in CFS on proportionate basis are the assets and liabilities as on 31.03.2013 and income and expenses
for the year ended on that date, being the proportionate share of parent company estimated from unaudited financial
statements of the JCE.
Assets & Liability of JCE as on 31.03.2013 is incorporated herein:
Particulars
Secured Loan
Creditors
Security Deposits
Fixed Assets
Investment
Advance to employee
Cash & Bank
Debtors
Other Advances

		

March 31, 2012
357
46
38
679
1
1
27
47
256

Income & Expenses for the year ended 31st March, 2013 is incorporated here in:
Particulars
Income
Misc Receipt (include revenue from flying ` 525, (previous year ` 395)
Total
Expenses
Operation Expenses
Payment to and provision for employees
Administrative Expenses
Financial Expenses
Total
Profit (forms part of profit in consolidated Profit & Loss a/c)

(d)

March 31, 2013
247
62
38
630
0
0
24
63
236

For the year ended
March 31, 2013

For the year ended
March 31, 2012

526
526

396
396

197
55
151
39
442
85

110
50
150
52
362
34

Parent company has furnished guarantee bond for ` 714 to banks of the JCE against its share of Commitment against
loan obtained by the JCE for acquisition of aircraft which forms part of note no. 25.
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EGP
USD

Dabur Egypt Ltd.

Dabur (UK) Ltd.

AED
USD
EGP
TRL
TRL
LPR
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD

Naturelle LLC

Dermovia Skin Essentials INC

Dabur Egypt Trading Ltd.

Hobi Kozmetik

RA Pazarlama

Dabur Lanka Pvt. Ltd.

Namaste Laboratories LLC

Urban Laboratories
International LLC

Hair Rejuvenation &
Revitalzation Nigeria Ltd.

Healing Hair Laboratories
International LLC

Namaste Cosmeticos Ltda

Asian Consumer Care Pakistan Pakistan
(Pvt.) Ltd.
Rupee

Naira

African Consumer Care Ltd.

54.28

54.28

54.28

54.28

54.28

0.43

29.92

29.92

7.98

54.28

14.78

0.55

54.28

7.98

0.34

0.7

Taka

Asian Conumer Care Pvt Ltd.

14.78
0

AED

Dabur International Ltd.

0.63

-

Weikfied International (UAE)
LLC

NPR

INR

0

0

0

0

0

4,118

248

4,102

4

11,489

393

540

0

253

1,847

3,184

0

1,295

499

3,791

2,884

5,093

6,463

0

927

0

4

8,771

5,870

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

13,185 17,512

(18)

367

8,708 16,345

0

(4,748) 66,328

318 13,435

(231)

0

8,555 15,047

1,589

437

0

33,963 90,424

11,407 32,081

(2,007)

0

0

0

0

17,512

8,771

5,870

16,345

4

66,327

13,435

927

0

15,047

5,093

6,463

0

90,426

32,081

2,884

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

49,907

80

15,192

14,533

0

4,614

33,455

3,425

0

19,215

5,526

8,062

716

66,552

46,253

6,204

0

0

0

0

2,985

(48)

(57)

1,621

0

3,661

130

382

0

3,381

571

1,041

33

9,926

2,646

(833)

(833)

571

621

33

130

271

0

0

(62)

(89)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 2,985

14

32

321 1,300

0

0 3,661

0

111

0

942 2,439

0

420

0

8 9,918

474 2,172

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Currency Exchange Capital Reserves Total
Total
Investment Turnover Profit Provision Profit Proposed
Rate
Assets Liabilities (excluding
before
for
after Dividend
investment
Taxation Taxation Tax
in
subsidiary)

Dabur Nepal Pvt Ltd.

Overseas:

H & B Stores Ltd.

Domestic:

Name of Subsidiaries

45. Information on Subsidiaries pursuant to Clause (iv) of General Circular No. - 2/2011 dated 8th February 2011 issued by MCA.
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46. AS 30, 31 & 32
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Considering mandatory status of AS-30 as conferred by ICAI, continuing up-to the point of approval of accounts of
previous year, company adopted relevant standard in said year. Notwithstanding subsequent modification of mandatory
status on AS-30 by ICAI, the company continues to follow AS-30 for treatment of financial instruments, financial assets
& liabilities as relevant standard, has been recommended for adoption by ICAI and is akin to International Accounting
Standard with ability to express the affairs of its jurisdiction in relatively realistic perspective of true and fairness of
accounts.
Financial assets/liabilities available for sale are of the nature of loans, receivables and payables, (not being receivable/
payable in short term context), call for measurements at amortized value unless amortized value does not materially
differ from unamortized value or assets /liabilities are held at floating rate of interest.
Effective rate of interest applicable for arriving at discounted value of relevant liabilities & assets as on date, hereby
described as amortized value, has been considered on the basis of appropriate Government Bond rate ruling as on
31-03-2013 which is 7.95 % as against 8.4% ruling as on 31-03-2012. Such benchmarking of effective rate is attributed
to expected cognizance taken by government of the market risk, commodity price index, foreign exchange reserve,
inflationary & deflationary impact on internal rates & cyclic / non cyclic fluctuations in fiscal & monetary system for the
purpose of arriving at the rate of bond.
Particulars on financial assets/liabilities where fair value/amortized cost differ from book balance:
Particulars

Holding
Price

A.      FINANCIAL ASSETS
a.       Held for Trading
Mutual Funds
b. Available for Sale
Government Bond
B.      FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a. Instrument hedging adverse
currency fluctuation against
Off Balance Exposure in
Foreign Currency
b. Instrument hedging adverse
currency fluctuation against
borrowing in foreign currency

Profit/(Loss)

600
65

Head of account Profit/(Loss)
being accounted for

as on 31.03.2013
as on 31.03.2012

19742
12165

20342
12231

as on 31.03.2013
as on 31.03.2012

8714
8714

9163
8792

as on 31.03.2013

0

0

0

Finance Cost

as on 31.03.2012
as on 31.03.2013

–
0

10
(56)

10
(56)

Finance Cost
Finance Cost

as on 31.03.2012

–

(63)

(63)

Finance Cost

C. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Particulars
Long term Borrowing

Fair Value

Other Income
Opening General Reserve

449 Investment Revaluation Reserve
78 Investment Revaluation Reserve

Original Discounted
Amount
Value
as on 31.03.2013
as on 31.03.2012

162
212

Re-instated Profit/ Head of account Profit/(Loss)
Discounted
(Loss)
being accounted for
Value
114
130
(16)
Finance Cost
164
0
48
Opening General Reserve

Unrealized hedging loss forming part of financial assets of ` 56 (` 53) against off balance sheet exposure appears in the
current liabilities in the balance sheet.
(f ) Value of equity instruments, financial assets not carried at fair value except for those having negligible impact or bearing
floating rate of interest.
		 ` 107 (` 107) towards noncurrent investment
		 ` 18401 (` 3001) of term deposit with bank maturing little after one year
(g) All financial assets and financial liabilities, not being referred to in above table, being short term in nature and not
tradable in primary or secondary market, have been carried at unamortized cost.
(h) The company has no exposure involving credit risk included in loan or receivable.
(i)
` 8 (` 8) of fixed deposits are pledged with government authorities towards excise bond.
(e)

47. SEGMENT INFORMATION PURSUANT TO AS-17 ISSUED BY ICAI
Particulars
1. Segment Revenue
A. Consumer Care Business
B. Foods Business
C. Retail Business
D. Other Segments
Net Sales/Income from Operations

Current year ended
March 31, 2013
5,14,189
74,488
5,997
19,964
6,14,638

Previous year ended
March 31, 2012
4,48,961
60,220
4,237
14,899
5,28,317
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NOTES TO THE ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AND THE ABRIDGED
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

2. Segment Results Profit / Loss(-) Before Tax and Interest
A. Consumer Care Business
B. Foods Business
C. Retail Business
D. Other Segments
Sub Total
Less : Interest & Financial Expenses
Less : Unallocable expenditure net off unallocable income
Profit / (Loss) before Tax
Exceptional Item
Profit/(Loss) from Ordinary activities before Tax
Less:- Tax Expenses
Profit / (Loss) after Tax
Extraordinary items
Net Profit/(Loss) for the period
Minority Interest
Net Profit/(Loss) after minority Interest
3. Capital Employed (Segment Assets-Segment Liabilities)
A. Consumer Care Business
B. Foods Business
C. Retail Business
D. Other Segments
Unallocated capital employed
Total

1,14,798
11,505
(953)
1,491
1,26,841
5,890
25,651
95,300
(466)
94,834
18,263
76,572
8
76,580
237
76,343

96,825
11,107
(1,163)
733
1,07,502
5,384
23,069
79,049
79,049
14,638
64,411
64,411
(78)
64,489

1,31,498
25,963
1,784
3,216
47,060
2,09,521

1,16,712
21,755
435
3,594
22,009
1,64,505

49. Pursuant to acquisition of Namaste Laboratories LLC along with its subsidiaries in 2011, the group entered into an agreement
with erstwhile promoters of acquired entities represented by one of their nominees in terms of which management of the
units was entrusted with him in the capacity of CEO for a specified period against payment to them in consideration (in
piecemeal) upto maximum of ` 18011 depending on the extent of achievement of target fixed over a period of four years
thereby rendering the group contingently liable for the maximum consideration amount. Said amount was provided for in
accounts. Consequent upon achievement of target in the first year, the group discharged proportionate liability to the tune of
$ 4.22 million in current financial year.
The said CEO has resigned in March’ 2013. Consequently, as per terms of the contract and as comprehended by the group, it is
no longer bound by the commitment. Accordingly the liability of ` 15800 has been withdrawn with consequent elimination
of corresponding goodwill on acquisition by like amount.
51. (a) Pursuant to Weikfield International (UAE) LLC leaving business combination following disposal of its stake by the group,
following assets & liabilities made their exit from the group accounts:
A.

B.
C.
D.
E.
F.
G.

(b)

Assets
Goodwill (consolidation)
Tangible Fixed Assets
Trade Receivable
Inventories
Cash & Cash Equivalent
Liabilities (Minority Interest)
Net assets (A-B)
Consideration money received
Deficit
Goodwill charged-off
Loss on sale of subsidiary (accounted for as exceptional item)

397
101
296
55
241
225
446

Exit of the subsidiary necessitated following adjustments in reserves:
A.
B.
C.

Loss on sale of subsidiary charged against surplus as exceptional item
Accumulated Reserve forming part of General Reserve towards the subsidiary transferred to surplus
Adjusted against Capital Reserve

466
26
440

(c)

During the year Namaste Cosmeticos Ltda, a new body corporate has been formed in Brazil as a wholly owned subsidiary,
100% rights therein are held by Namaste Laboratories LLC incorporated in USA.

(d)

Aforesaid exit and entry from/in business combinations did not have any material impact on CFS.

As per our report of even date attached

For DABUR INDIA LIMITED

for G.BASU & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 301174E

DR ANAND BURMAN
Chairman

ANIL KUMAR
SUNIL DUGGAL
Partner
Whole Time Director
Membership No. 9390		
Place : New Delhi
Date  : April 30, 2013
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24
1
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P D NARANG
Whole Time Director
A K JAIN
Senior G.M. (Finance)
Cum Company Secretary
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NOTICE
9 10 11 12 13 14
Notice is hereby given that the 38th Annual General Meeting of
the Members of Dabur India Limited will be held on Wednesday,
the 17th July, 2013 at Air Force Auditorium, Subroto Park, New
Delhi – 110010 at 11.00 AM to transact the following business:ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet
of the Company as at 31st March, 2013 and Profit and Loss
Account for the year ended on that date along with the
Reports of Auditors and Directors thereon.
2.
To confirm the interim dividend already paid and declare
final dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2013.
3.
To appoint a Director in place of Dr Anand Burman who
retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for
reappointment.
4.
To appoint a Director in place of Mr P D Narang who
retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for
reappointment.
5.
To appoint a Director in place of Dr Ajay Dua who
retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for
reappointment.
6.
To appoint a Director in place of Mr R C Bhargava who
retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for
reappointment.
7.
To appoint M/s G Basu & Co., Chartered Accountants
as Auditors to hold office from the conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting untill the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting of the company and to fix their
remuneration.
SPECIAL BUSINESS
8.
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Sanjay Kumar Bhattacharyya who
was co-opted by the Board as an Additional Director with
effect from 23rd July, 2012 and who holds office up to the
date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of
whom the company has received a notice in writing from
a member proposing his candidature for the office of
Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the
Company liable to retire by rotation.”
9.
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions
of Sections 314(1) and all other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force), the consent of the Company be and is
hereby accorded to the appointment of Mr. Amit Burman
(a non executive director of the Company) as a Whole Time
Director in Dabur International Limited, a Wholly Owned
Subsidiary of the company, w.e.f. 1st April, 2013 on such
remuneration and terms & conditions as set out in the
explanatory statement attached to this notice and further
variation in the terms and conditions of remuneration

w.e.f. 01.04.2013 as set out in the explanatory statement
attached to this notice.
By Order of the Board
for DABUR INDIA LIMITED
Regd. Office:
8/3, Asaf Ali Road,
New Delhi - 110 002
April 30, 2013

(A K JAIN)
Sr. General Manager (Finance)
& Company Secretary

NOTES
1.
The relevant explanatory statement pursuant to Section
173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of item no. 8
to 9 of the notice set out above is annexed herewith.
2.
A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE
MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND
AND ON A POLL TO VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF. THE PROXY
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A BLANK FORM
OF PROXY IS ENCLOSED HEREWITH AND, IF INTENDED TO
BE USED, IT SHOULD BE RETURNED DULY COMPLETED
AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS
THAN FORTY EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE SCHEDULED TIME
OF THE COMMENCEMENT OF 38TH ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING.
3.
The Share Transfer Books and Register of Members of the
Company will remain closed from Tuesday, 25th June, 2013
to Tuesday, 2nd July, 2013 (both days inclusive).
4A. Members holding shares in physical form are requested
to notify/send the following to the Registrar & Transfer
Agent of the Company Karvy Computershare Pvt Ltd., 305.
New Delhi House, 27 Barakhamba Road, New Delhi-110001:i)
their bank account details in order to receive
payment of dividend through electronic mode;
ii)

their email id, in case the same have not been
sent earlier, for the purpose of receiving the
communication electronically;

iii)

any change in their address/e-mail id/ECS mandate/
bank details;

iv)

share certificate(s), held in multiple accounts in
identical names or joint accounts in the same order
of names, for consolidation of such shareholding
into one account.

4B. Members holding shares in the dematerialized form are
requested to notify to their Depository Participant:
i)
their email id
ii)

all changes with respect to their address, email id,
ECS mandate and bank details.

4C. Kindly note that as per SEBI Circular CIR/MRD/DP/10/2013
dated March 21, 2013 it is mandatory for the company to
print the bank account details of the investors in dividend
payment instrument. Hence, you are requested to register/
update your correct bank account details with the
Company/RTA/Depository Participant, as the case may be.
5.
The Securities and Exchange Board of India has notified
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6.

7.

8.

9.
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NOTICE

that the shareholders/ transferee of shares (including joint
holders) holding shares in physical form are required to
furnish a certified copy of their Income Tax Permanent
Account Number (PAN) card to the Company / RTA while
transacting in the securities market including transfer,
transmission or any other corporate action. Accordingly,
all the shareholders/ transferee of shares (including
joint holders) in physical form are requested to furnish a
certified copy of their PAN Card to the company/ RTA while
transacting in the securities market including transfer,
transmission or any other corporate action.
The shares of the company are under compulsory Demat
trading. Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to convert their shares into dematerialized form
in their own interest and convenience purpose.
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide Circular No.
17/2011 dated 21.04.2011 & No. 18/2011 dated 29.04.2011
allowed the service of documents on members by a
company through electronic mode. Accordingly, as a part
of its Green Initiative in Corporate Governance and in terms
of circulars issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs allowing
paperless compliances through electronic mode, soft copy
of the Annual report for the year ended 31st March, 2013
has been sent to all the members whose email address
is registered with the Company/Depository Participant
(s) unless any member has requested for a hard copy of
the same. Further, in terms of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/
DIL/7/2011 dated 05.10.2011 the hard copies of Abridged
Annual Report have been sent to all other members
who have not registered their email address. Members,
who have not yet registered their email address with
the Company/RTA/Depository Participant, are requested
to do the same at the earliest by submitting duly filled
in e-communication Request Letter (available on our
website www. dabur.com in Investors Services Section) to
the Company/RTA. Members can also submit their form
along with Attendance Slip at the Registration Counter
at AGM. Members holding shares in dematerialized form
are requested to register their email address with their
Depository Participant only. Even after registering for
e-communication, members are entitled to receive such
communication in physical form, upon receipt of request
for the same, by post/courier free of cost.
The Notice of the 38th Annual General Meeting and the
Annual Report for 2013 will also be available, on the
Company’s website www.dabur.com for download by the
members. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents
will also be available at the Company’s Registered Office
for inspection during business hours.
The Shareholders/Proxies are requested to produce at the
Registration Counter(s) the attached attendance slip, duly
completed and signed, for admission to the meeting hall.
However, in case of non-receipt of Notice of Annual
General Meeting, members are requested to write to the
Company at its registered office for issuing the duplicate
of the same.
In case you have any query relating to the enclosed

10.

11.

12.

13.

Annual Accounts you are requested to send the same
to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of
the Company at least 10 days before the date of Annual
General Meeting so as to enable the management to keep
the information ready for replying at the meeting.
Pursuant to provisions of Section 205C of the Companies
Act, 1956 the amount of dividends remaining unclaimed
and unpaid for a period of seven years from the date it
is lying in the unpaid dividend account, is required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF). Accordingly, till date the Company has transferred
the unpaid and unclaimed amount pertaining to interim
dividend for the financial year 2005-2006. Members
who have not yet encashed their dividend warrants for
the financial year 2005-2006 (final dividend) onwards
are requested to make their claims to the company
immediately. Members may please note that no claim
shall lie either against the Fund or the Company in
respect of dividend which remain unclaimed and unpaid
for a period of seven years from the date it is lying in the
unpaid dividend account and no payment shall be made
in respect of such claims.
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on 10th May, 2012
notified the IEPF (Uploading of information regarding
unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with companies)
Rules, 2012 (IEPF Rules). The objective of the IEPF Rules
is to help the shareholders ascertain status of the
unclaimed amounts and overcome the problems due
to misplacement of intimation thereof by post etc. The
Company has uploaded the information in respect of
the Unclaimed Dividends in respect of the financial years
2005-06 to 2011-2012, as on the date of 37th Annual
General Meeting held on 17th July, 2012, on the website of
the IEPF viz. www.iepf.gov.in and under “Investor Section”
on the website of the Company viz. www.dabur.com.
Shareholders may kindly check the said information and
if any dividend amount is appearing as unpaid against
their name, they are requested to lodge their claim, duly
supported by relevant document to the company before
expiry of seven years from the date it is lying in the unpaid
dividend account.
As a measure of economy, copies of Annual Reports will
not be distributed at the venue of the Annual General
Meeting. Members are, therefore, requested to bring their
own copies of the Annual Reports to the meeting.
Details under Clause 49 of the Listing agreement with
the Stock exchanges in respect of the Directors seeking
appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General
Meeting, is separately annexed hereto. The Directors
seeking appointment/re-appointment have furnished
the declaration under the Companies (Disqualification of
Directors under Section 274(1)(g) of the Companies Act,
1956) Rules, 2003.
All the documents referred to in the accompanying
notice and Register of Directors’ Shareholding are open
for inspection at the registered office of the Company
on all working days between 11.00 am to 1.00 pm up to
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the date of Annual General Meeting. Register of Directors’
Shareholding shall also be open for inspection upto 3 days
after the Annual General Meeting.
14. The Certificate from Auditors of the company certifying
that the Employee Stock Option Scheme of the Company
is being implemented in accordance with the SEBI
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and in accordance
with the resolutions passed by the General Body Meetings
will be placed at the Annual General Meeting.
15. Members holding shares in physical form and desirous
of making a nomination in respect of their shareholding
in the Company, as permitted under Section 109A of the
Companies Act, 1956, are requested to submit to the
Registrar & Transfer Agents of the Company the prescribed
Form 2B, which can be downloaded from our website
www.dabur.com. Members holding shares in demat
mode may contact their respective Depository Participant
(DP) for availing this facility.
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF SPECIAL
BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 173(2) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 1956
Item No.8
The Board of Directors has appointed Mr Sanjay Kumar
Bhattacharyya as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f.
23rd July, 2012 in terms of Section 260 of the Companies Act,
1956.
Pursuant to section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956 he shall hold
office only up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting.
Valid Notice along with requisite deposit under section 257 of
the Companies Act, 1956 has been received from a member of
the Company proposing the candidature of Mr. Sanjay Kumar
Bhattacharyya for the office of Director of the Company.
Mr Sanjay Kumar Bhattacharyya has done BA (Hons) in
Economics, from St. Stephen`s College, New Delhi. He has served
State Bank of India since 1972 at various senior positions and
was the Managing Director of the Bank from October, 2007 to
2010. He is presently on the Board of Persistent Systems Limited,
C&S Electric Limited and Finnacle Capital Advisors Private Ltd.
The Board considers that his association as a Director will be
beneficial to and in the interest of the company.
The Board of Directors recommends for your approval his
appointment as Director of the company, liable to retire by
rotation.
He is not related to any other director of the company in terms
of Section 2(41) and section 6 read with Schedule 1A of the
Companies Act, 1956.
None of the Directors other than Mr. Sanjay Kumar Bhattacharyya
himself, is concerned or interested in the resolution.
Item No. 9
Mr Amit Burman was appointed as a whole time Director of
Dabur International Ltd., a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the
company w.e.f. 1st April, 2013 on the remuneration and other
terms and conditions as mutually agreed. Accordingly, the
Board of Directors of your company in its meeting held on

30th April, 2013, has recommended the appointment of Mr. Amit
Burman as whole time director (or any other designation which
the Board of Directors of Dabur International Ltd. may decide
from time to time) of Dabur International Ltd. w.e.f. 1st April, 2013
on the following remuneration and terms and conditions:
A. Consolidated Salary: AED 37,568 per month
B. Perquisites & Allowance: In addition to the above, Mr Amit
Burman will also be entitled to the following benefits as
per rules of the Company:1.
Medical reimbursement for self and family members
for the actual amount incurred.
2

Use of Company’s chauffeur driven Car for official
purpose and telephone at residence (including
payment for local calls and long distance calls,
mobile phone, internet facility, any other means
of communication facility). Use of car for private
purpose and personal long distance calls shall be
billed by the Company to the appointee.

Mr Amit Burman is a Promoter Director of Dabur India Limited,
holds executive position in Dabur International Ltd a subsidiary
of the Company. With a view to inculcate highest standards of
good Corporate Governance in true spirit and to create and
adhere to a corporate culture of fairness, transparency and
ethical business practices and thereby ultimately enhancing
shareholders value, he has voluntarily expressed his wish vide
letter dated 10.04.2013 to forgo his right to withdraw salary
beyond token amount of AED 1 per month but to continue his
entitlement to reimbursement of medical expenses (including
for family), telephone expenses and facility of chauffer driven
car with expenses, w.e.f. 1.04.2013, which he is entitled to as per
the remuneration and other terms and conditions approved by
Board of Dabur International Ltd.
Accordingly, the revised remuneration of Mr Amit Burman w.e.f.
1st April, 2013 is as under:Consolidated Salary : AED 1 Per Month
In addition to the above, Mr. Amit Burman will also be entitled to
the following benefits as per rules of the company:i)
Medical expenses reimbursement for self and family
members for the actual amount incurred.
ii) Use of Company’s chauffeur driven car for official purposes
and telephone at residence (including payment for local calls
and long distance official calls, mobile phone, internet facility,
any other means of communication facility). Use of car for
private purpose and personal long distance telephone calls
shall be billed by the Company to the appointee.
Since Mr. Amit Burman is a Director of your Company and shall
receive remuneration from Dabur International Ltd., a Wholly
Owned Subsidiary of your company, his appointment as Whole
time Director in the said subsidiary is required to be approved
by Special Resolution of members of the company in pursuance
of the provisions of section 314 of the Companies Act, 1956.
The copy of resolution passed by the Board of Directors effective
1st April, 2013 approving the appointment of Mr Amit Burman as
Whole time Director of Dabur International Ltd. is available for
inspection by the members of the Company at its Registered
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Office between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. on all working days till
the date of Annual General Meeting.
The Board of directors recommends the special resolution for
your approval.
None of the Directors other than Mr Amit Burman himself, is

concerned or interested in the resolution.
Mr. Amit Burman belongs to the promoters’ family. Besides, he
is not related to any other director of the Company in terms
of section 2(41) and Section 6 read with Schedule IA of the
Companies Act, 1956.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING REAPPOINTMENT IN ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING FIXED FOR 17TH JULY, 2013
Name of Director

Dr Anand Burman

Mr Pritam Das Narang

Dr Ajay Dua

Mr R C Bhargava

Mr Sanjay K Bhattacharyya

05.05.1952

12.04.1954

15.07.1947

30.07.1934

31.10.1950

of 13.10.1986

01.04.1998

03.09.2009

27.01.2005

23.07.2012

Date of Birth
Date
Appointment
Qualification

M Sc, PHD University of Kansas, B.Com, FCA, FCS, AICWA, MIIA IAS (Retd.), M Sc (Eco), Ph. D.
USA
(USA)

Expertise in specific He joined Dabur in 1980 as
functional area
manager R&D and came on the
Board of the company in 1986. He
set up pharmaceutical business
of the company in 1989 and
was responsible for Company’s
diversification
into
various
categories of business. He led
the acquisition of Fem, Hobi &
Namaste businesses. Presently he
is Chairman of the company.

Mr. P D Narang is the Group
Director - Corporate Affairs.
He is having vast experience
in Corporate Finance &
Tax Planning, International
Finance, Public Issue, Capital
Markets, Strategic Planning
and Management, Mergers and
Acquisitions, Demergers etc.

List of companies
in which outside
directorship held*

1. H&B Stores Ltd.
1. Aviva Life Insurance
2. Aviva Life Insurance
Company India Ltd
Company India Ltd.
2. Peninsula Land Limited
3. Jetage Infrastructure Ltd.
4. Dabur International Ltd.
5. Dabur Research
Foundation
6. Dabur Egypt Ltd.
7. African Consumer Care Ltd.
8. Naturelle LLc
9. Dabur Egypt Trading Ltd.
10. Dermoviva Skin Essentials
Inc.
11. Hobi Kozmetik
12. Hair Rejuvenation and
Revitalization Nigeria Ltd.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.

Chairman/Member
of the Committee of
Board of Directors
of the Companies*

H&B stores Ltd.
Dabur Pharmaceuticals Ltd.
Dabur Research Foundation
Hindustan Motors Ltd.
Aviva Life Insurance
Company India Ltd.
Althea Lifescience Ltd.
Hero MotoCorp Ltd.
Ester Industries Ltd.
Dabur (UK) Ltd.
Dabur International Ltd.
Dermoviva Skin Essentials
Inc.
Hobi Kozmetik

Remuneration cum
Compensation Committee:• Dabur India Limited

A retired civil servant, Dr.
Dua joined the Indian
Administrative
Service
in
1971. He has held a variety
of senior assignments in the
Government of Maharashtra
and the Government of India.
With a strong academic
background and diverse workexperience Dr Dua is currently
a senior business advisor /
Board Member of several
multinational firms.

Mr R C Bhargava served
in Indian Administrative
Services and has held the
post of Joint Secretary in the
Ministry of Energy and in the
Cabinet Secretariat. He held
various positions in Maruti
Suzuki India Limited and
retired in 1997 as its CEO. At
present he is Chairman of
Maruti Suzuki India Ltd.

1. IL&FS Limited
2. Polaris Financial
Technology Limited
3. Taj Asia Limited
4. Grasim Industries
Limited
5. Maruti Suzuki India
Limited
6. Thomson Press Limited
7. Ultra Tech Cement
Company Limited
8. Idea Cellular Limited
9. Kokoyu Camlin Limited

He was the former Managing
Director and Chief Credit
& Risk Officer with State
Bank of India, is an astute
senior level banker with
over 38 years of experience
spanning International and
Corporate Banking across
geographies, Retail Banking,
Credit & Risk Management,
Liability
Management,
Human
Resource
Management as CEO of
three banks, including State
Bank of India, State Bank
of Bikaner & Jaipur and SBI
(International) Mauritius.
1. Persistent Systems Ltd.
2. C&S Electric Ltd.

Stakeholders Relationship
Committee

Audit Committee:-

Audit Committee

Audit Committee

•

•
•

•
•

•

Dabur India Limited

Audit Committee
• H&B Stores Ltd.
Remuneration cum
Compensation Committee:• H&B Stores Ltd.

Dabur India Limited
Aviva Life Insurance
Company India Ltd.

•
Stakeholders Relationship
Committee:• Dabur India Limited
Remuneration cum
Compensation Committee:• Aviva Life Insurance
Company India Ltd.

Shareholding in the 660,000
Company

MA
in
Development B.A (Hons.) in Economics
Economics,
MS
in
Mathematics, IAS retired.

2,899,394

Nil

•
•
•
•

IL&FS Limited
Polaris Financial  
Technology Limited
Grasim Industries
Limited
Dabur India Limited
Thomson Press Limited
Ultra Tech Cement
Company Limited
Kokoyu Camlin Limited

Persistent Systems ltd.

Shareholders/ Investors
Grievance Committee:• Persistent Systems ltd.
Remuneration cum
Compensation Committee:• Persistent Systems ltd.

Shareholders/Investors
Grievance Committee:• Maruti Suzuki India
Limited
• Ultra Tech Cement
Company Limited
Nil

Nil

* Excluding Private Limited Companies
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DABUR INDIA LIMITED
Registered Office: 8/3, Asaf Ali Road, New Delhi - 110 002 (India)
Folio / DP ID - Client ID No.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

No. of Shares :

I/we certify that I/we am/are member(s)/proxy for the member(s) of the Company.
I/we hereby record my/our presence at the 38th Annual General Meeting of the Company being held at Air Force Auditorium,
Subroto Park, New Delhi-110010 on Wednesday the 17th July, 2013 at 11.00 A.M.
My/our e-mail ID for e-service of documents is
First Holder/Proxy
1st Jointholder
2nd Jointholder
(Name in block letters)
(Signature)
Note (s) :
1. Please sign this attendance slip and hand it over at the Attendance Verification Counter at the MEETING VENUE.
2. THIS ATTENDENCE SLIP IS VALID ONLY IN CASE SHARES ARE HELD ON THE DATE OF MEETING.



DABUR INDIA LIMITED
Registered Office: 8/3, Asaf Ali Road, New Delhi - 110 002 (India)
Folio / DP ID - Client ID No.

PROXY FORM

No. of Shares :

I/we .................................................................................................................................................................................................................... of ........................................
................................................................................................................................. being a member/members of DABUR INDIA LIMITED hereby appoint
................................................................................................................................................... of ............................................................................................................
......... or failing him/her ................................................................ of ........................................................................................................................................... as
my/our proxy to attend and to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the 38th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, the 17th July, 2013 at 11.00 A.M. at Air Force Auditorium, Subroto Park, New Delhi-110010 and at any adjournment thereof.
My/our e-mail ID for e-service of documents is
Given this ...................................................... day of ...................................................... 2013
(Please sign across the stamp)

Affix
Re. 1/Revenue
Stamp

Note (s):
1. The Proxy need NOT be a Member of the Company.
2. The Proxy Form signed across revenue stamp should reach Company’s registered office at least 48 hours before the scheduled time of meeting.
3. Company reserves the right to ask for identification of the proxy.
4. Proxy cannot speak at the meeting or vote on a show of hands.
5. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person, if he so wishes.
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